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A message from Mr. Himanshu Sangal, Managing Director of the company 

 
Dear Stakeholder 
 
My heartiest greetings to you on my personal behalf and Sangal Papers Limited. 

Once again, it is my pleasure to present before you the Annual Report of your Company for the F.Y-

2021-22, focusing on the performance highlights of the year. 

During the first and second wave of COVID 19 pandemic, where writing and printing paper demand 

contracted significantly due to close down of educational institution and other organization all over the 

country, the paper industry was backed by packaging paper demand in sector like pharma, FMCG, e-

commerce retail etc. which played a major role in driving growth during that time for the paper industry. 

Now, after vaccination drive in the country the covid case decline suddenly and the proactive measures 

in supply chain management in ensuring availability of trucks, loading/unloading crew, etc were put in 

place, which ensured the smoother flow of materials across the country. 

With above supported factors, your company achieved growth of 46% (approx.) in sales revenue as 

compared to last FY 2020-2021 and 151% (approx.) increase in Profit after Tax (PAT) as compared to FY 

2020-2021. 

Company is planning to enhance the production by switching one of the machines from News print to 

Kraft paper. 

As increase in the growth of organized retail sector and reopening of school, offices etc. supports in 

rising demand of paper and paper products. The company projecting to cross Rs. 225 crore revenue in 

ensuing Financial Year. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
Himanshu Sangal 
Managing Director 
 
 

3



1 | P a g e  
 

SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED CIN : L21015UP1980PLC005138) 
Vill. Bhainsa, 22Km Meerut - Mawana Road, Mawana- 250 401, Distt. – Meerut (U.P)  

E- Mail ID:sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com, Website: www.sangalpapers.com PH. No. : +91-1233-271515 
 
NOTICE TO MEMBERS:  
Notice is hereby given under the provision of section 101 of the Companies Act 2013 that Forty - Second (42

nd
) 

Annual General Meeting of the SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, 28
th 

September, 2022 at 
01:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following 
business :- 
 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
  
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the year 

ended 31
st

 March 2022, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
   

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tanmay Sangal (DIN No.: 01397057) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vinayak Sangal (DIN No.: 06833351) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this connection to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded tore-appointment of M/S RAJ VIYOM & Co. (Chartered Accountants) 
formerly known as M/S RAJ SANDHYA & Co., Muzaffarnagar (Registration No.: 002011C), as Statutory Auditor 
of the company, to hold office for a period of five year from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of Forty-Seventh (47

th
) Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in the year 2027, at 

a remuneration as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board in consultation with the 
auditors.” 
  

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
 

5. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS : 
 
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and Companies(Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the ratification of payment 
of remuneration of 40,000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of travel 
and out of pocket expenses, if any, to be paid to M/s. Mr. S. R. Kapur, Cost Accountant (Membership No.:- M-
4926),who has been appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of Directors to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2023. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and 
take all such steps as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
6. INCREASE IN BORROWING POWER OF THE COMPANY 

 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT T in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this regard and pursuant to 
the provisions of section 180(1)(c ) of the Companies Act 2013 and all other applicable provisions if any, or any 
other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and in terms of Articles of Association of the Company, the Company hereby 
accords its consent to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "the Board" which term shall be deemed 
to include any Committee which the Board may constitute for this purpose) of the Company, for borrowing any 
sum or sums of money from time to time whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency (including external 
commercial borrowings in foreign denominated currencies from any foreign source / countries as prescribed by 
guidelines, if any in this respect) from any one or more Company's bankers and /or from any one or more 
persons, firms, bodies corporate, financial institutions, banks or other acceptable source whether by way of 
advances, deposits, loans, non-convertible debentures, bonds or otherwise and whether unsecured or secured 
notwithstanding that the moneys to be borrowed together with moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart 
from the temporary loans obtained from the Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of business) will or may 
exceed the aggregate paid-up capital of the Company and  its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart 
for any specific purpose but, so however, that the total amount up to which the moneys may be borrowed by the 
Board of Directors and outstanding shall not exceed the sum of Rs. 80 crores (Rupees Eighty crores only) at any 
one time." 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors be and is 

hereby authorized to negotiable and decide terms and conditions such borrowing, finalise and execute all such 

deeds, documents and writings as may be necessary, desirable or expedient,  settle any question, difficulty or 

doubt that may arise in this regard , do all such acts, deeds, matters and things , as it may , in its absolute 

discretion , deem necessary , proper of desirable and to delegate all or any Committee of Directors or Managing 

Director or whole time Director or Director or any other officer of the Company or any other person.’’ 

 

7. CREATION OF SECURITY ON THE PROPERTIES OF THE COMPANY IN FAVOUR OF THE LENDERS. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 

‘’RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this regard and subject to 

Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

relevant rules made thereto including any statutory modifications or re‐enactments thereof, 

consent of the shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded, to the Board of 

Directors of the Company to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the 

moveable or immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of 

the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating charge in all or any 

movable or immovable properties of the Company and the whole of the undertaking of the 
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Company to or in favour of banks, financial institutions, investors and any other lenders to 

secure the amount borrowed by the Company from time to time for the due payment of the 

principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable 

by the Company in respect of such borrowings provided that the aggregate indebtedness 

secured by the assets of the Company does not exceed a sum of Rs. 80 crores (Rupees Eighty 

Crores only) at any time, 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors be and 

is hereby authorized to negotiable and decide terms and conditions of security , finalise and execute all 

such deeds, documents and writings as may be necessary, desirable or expedient, settle any question, 

difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard , do all such acts, deeds, matters and things , as it may , in its 

absolute discretion , deem necessary , proper of desirable and to delegate all or any Committee of Directors 

or Managing Director or whole time Director or Director or any other officer of the Company or any other 

person.” 

 
 
 

 
  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Sangal Papers Limited 
 
Date : 01

st  
September 2022    Sd/-   

Place : Mawana            Arpit Jain  
        Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer 

 
NOTES:  

1. Pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021 and 

02/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021, 

December 14, 2021 and  May 05, 2022 respectively issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(‘MCA’) (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/ 

CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and SEBI/HODDHS/P/CIR/2022/0062 

dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021 and May 13,2022, respectively issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’), holding of the Annual General 

Meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members, is permitted. 

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘the Listing Regulations’), MCA 

Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM which 

does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM 

will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the 

deemed Venue of the AGM. 

 

2. A statement giving relevant details of the directors seeking appointment/ reappointment under 

Item No. 2 and 3 of the accompanying notice, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed herewith as Annexure-A. 
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3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled 

to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of 

the Company. In terms of MCA Circulars, since physical attendance of Members has been 

dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members under Section 105 of the Act, will not be available for the 

AGM and, hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. The Board of 

Directors has appointed Shri Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. 5226, CP 

No. 3599) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner. 

 

4. Corporate/Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send 

scanned copy of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its 

representative to attend AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-

voting.  The said Resolution/Authorization be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its 

registered email address to d k g u p t a 0 8 @ y a h o o . c o . i n  with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

5. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

6. Members can login and join the AGM 30 minutes prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM 

and the window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled 

time to start the AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 

available for 1000 members, on first-come-first-served basis. However, the participation of large 

members (members holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, 

directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors can attend the 

AGM without restriction of first-come-first served basis. Instructions and other information for 

members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are given in this Notice. 

 

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 

names will be entitled to vote. 

 

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 

aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its 
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Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company 

has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a 

member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be 

provided by NSDL. 

 

9. For ease of conduct, members who would like to ask questions/express their views on the items of 

the business to be transacted at the meeting can send in their questions/ comments in advance 

mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at 

sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.Those 

Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of 

speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 

10. The Registers of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 to Wednesday, September 28, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the 

purpose of annual closure of books. 

 

 

11. In accordance with SEBI LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) 

Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 30/11/2018 any request 

for physical transfer of shares shall not be processed w.e.f. April 01,2019 

 

Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 

dated 25th January 2022, the following requests received by the Company in physical form will be 

processed and the shares will be issued in dematerialization form only:- 

 

i. Issue of duplicate share certificate  

ii. Claim from unclaimed suspense account  

iii. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate  

iv. Endorsement  

v. Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate  

vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios  

vii. Transmission  

viii. Transposition  
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For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is 

hosted on the website of the company as well as on the website of MAS Services Ltd, Registrar 

and share transfer agent (RTA) at www.masserv.com under download tab. The aforementioned 

form shall be furnished in hard copy form.  

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the 

earliest. 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circular dated November 03, 2021 read 

with circular dated December 14, 2021 has made it mandatory for the shareholders holding 

securities in physical form to furnish PAN, KYC (complete address with pin-code, bank detail with 

MICR-CODE & IFS CODE, Email-ID, Mobile Number) and Nomination details to the Registrar and 

Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) of the Company. Effective from 1st January 2022.  Registrar will not 

process, any service requests or complaints received from the member until unless above KYC and 

nomination will not be completed by shareholder and such shareholders holding will be fridge by 

RTA  on or after 1st April 2023. 

 

The shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to note that in case of failure to 

provide required documents and details as per aforesaid SEBI circular, all folios of such 

shareholders shall be frozen on or after April 01, 2023 by the RTA. In view of the above, 

shareholders of the Company holding securities in physical form are requested to provide 

following documents/details to RTA: 

i. PAN;  (using ISR-1) 
ii. Nomination in Form No.SH-13 or submit declaration to ‘Opt-out’ in Form ISR-3;  

iii. Contact details including Postal address with PIN code, Mobile Number, E-mail address;  
iv. Bank Account details including Bank name and branch, Bank account number, IFS code;  
v. Specimen signature. (using ISR-2)  

Any cancellation or change in nomination shall be provided in Form No.SH-14  

 

All of above required documents/details to be sent at the address of registered office of the RTA. 

The shareholders can download the forms mentioned in SEBI circular from the website of the 

Company or RTA website i.e www.masserv.com under download tab. 

 

A separate communication has already been sent to the respective shareholders. 

13. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along  
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with the Annual Report 2021- 22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members 

whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that 

the Notice calling AGM along with the explanatory statement and Annual Report 2021-22 are 

available on the website of the Company at www.sangalpapers.com and on the website of the 

Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency for providing 

voting through electronic means and AGM through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-link on the 

above will also be provided in advertisement being published in Financial Express (English 

edition) and Jansatta (Hindi edition). 

 

14. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can 

be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of 

request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate 

all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding 

shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized 

form. Members can contact the Company Secretary or Mas Services Limited, Company’s 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) (Tel. No. 011 26387281/82/83) for assistance in this 

regard. 

 

15. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the same 

with their Depository Participants (“DP”) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form 

and with the Company/RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

 

16. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-

mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 

nominations, power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in electronic 

form and to the Company/RTA  if the shares are held by them in physical form.  

 

17. For receiving all future correspondence (including Annual Report) from the Company   

  electronically – 

 

In case you have not registered your email ID with the Company/ Depositary, please follow below 

instructions to register your email ID for obtaining Annual Report for FY 2021-2022 and login 

details for e-voting. 

 

Physical Holding 
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Send a signed request letter to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, MAS Services 

Limited at investor@masserv.com providing Folio Number, Name of the Shareholder, scanned 

copy of the Share Certificate (Front and Back), PAN( Self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), 

AADHAR ( Self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) with subject line (Register E-mail ID Folio No 

(Mention Folio No) of Sangal Papers Limited. 

 

Demat Holding 

 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address as per the process 

advised by DP. 

 

18. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. Further, those members who have 
not registered their e-mail addresses and mobile nos. and in consequence could not be served 
the Notice of the AGM and Annual Report may temporarily get themselves registered with RTA 
by emailing for obtaining the same. Members are requested to support our commitment to 
environmental protection by choosing to receive the Company’s communications through e-mail 
going forward. 

 

 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.sangalpapers.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

19. In case a person has become a member of the Company after dispatch of the AGM Notice, but on 

or before the cur-off date for e-voting i.e. Wednesday, September 21, 2022, such person may 

obtain the User ID and Password from RTA by e-mail request on investor@masserv.com 

  

20.  With a view to helping us serve the members better, members who hold shares in identical 

names and in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the 

Company to consolidate their holdings in one folio. 

 

21. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders 

of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him/them shall vest in 
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the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the 

requisite nomination form. 

 

22. In terms of SEBI Circular dated 09/12/2020, the depository shall send SMS/email alerts regarding 

the details of the upcoming AGM to the demat holders atleast 2 days prior to the date of 

commencement of e-voting. Hence members are requested to update the mobile no./email ID 

with their respective depository participants. 

 

23. SEBI has made it mandatory for all Companies to use the bank account details furnished  

 by the Depositories and the bank account details maintained by the RTA for payment of dividend 

to Members electronically. The Company has extended the facility of electronic credit of 

dividend directly to the respective bank accounts of the Member(s) through Electronic Clearing 

Service (ECS)/National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS)/ Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS)/ 

Direct Credit/NEFT etc. In the absence of ECS facilities, the Company will print the bank account 

details if available, on the payment instrument for distribution of dividend. 

 

In order to receive the dividend without loss of time, the Members holding shares in physical form 

are requested to submit particulars of their bank accounts along with the original cancelled 

cheque bearing the name of the Member to the RTA, MAS Services Limited/Company to update 

their bank account details and all the eligible shareholders holding shares in demat mode are 

requested to update with their respective DPs, their correct Bank Account Number, including 9 

Digit MICR Code and 11 digit IFSC Code, e-mail ID and Mobile No(s). 

 

Members holding shares in physical form may communicate these details to the RTA viz. MAS 

Services Limited having address at RTA i.e. MAS Services Limited, having address at T-34 2nd 

Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi 110020, by quoting the reference folio number 

and attaching photocopy of the cheque leaf of their active bank account and a self-attested copy 

of their Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) card.  

 

This will facilitate the remittance of the dividend amount as directed by SEBI in the bank account 

electronically. Updation of e-mail IDs and Mobile No(s) will enable the Company in sending 

communication relating to credit of dividend, un-encashed dividend, etc.  

 

The Company or RTA cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding 

shares in demat form for any change of bank particulars. Such changes are to be intimated only to 

the DPs of the Members.  

 

24. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable at the hands of shareholders 

w.e.f. 1st April, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to 

12



10 | P a g e  
 

members at prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories the members are 

requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereto. The members are 

requested to update their PAN with Registrar and Transfer Agents (in case of shares held in 

physical mode) and depository participants (in case shares held in demat mode). However, no 

tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual shareholder if the total 

dividend to be received during FY 21-22 does not exceed Rs.5,000/-. 

 

 A resident individual shareholder with PAN who is not liable to pay income tax submit a yearly 

declaration in Form 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at Company’s RTA at 

investor@masserv.com. Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not 

registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%. 

 

25. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at its 
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day except 
Saturdays, upto the date of meeting. 

 

26. Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows: 

 

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for 

the purpose of this section of the Notice) and regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 

Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to exercise votes on the items of business given 

in the Notice 42nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) through electronic voting system, to members 

holding shares as on Wednesday, Septemeber 21, 2022 (end of day), being the cut-off date fixed 

for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote e-voting process, 

through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at the e-AGM. 

 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING 

ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September 25, 2022 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 

Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Wednesday, 21 September 2022, 

may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to 

13



11 | P a g e  
 

their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 

Wednesday 21 September, 2022. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 

order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 

the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider – 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click 

athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available 

against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting.  

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 

see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at   

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistratio

n  

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL 

where the e-Voting is in progress. 
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Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once 

you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-

Voting feature. Click on options available against company name or e-

Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 

or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

 

 

 

 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

16

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


14 | P a g e  
 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 

after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 

vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 122072 then user ID is 

122072001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
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a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 
 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
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How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 

to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to dkgupta08@yahoo.co.in  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 

request to Amit Vishal at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this 

notice: 
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1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor@masserv.com 

or sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com . 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

investor@masserv.com or sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com. If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 

explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3.    Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 

EGM/AGM. 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 

for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-

voting. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access 

to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed 

under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 

VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 

in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 

the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 

User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 

mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 

at sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com or accounts@sangalpapers.com. The same will be replied by 

the company suitably. 

 

General Instructions 

 

i. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the 

facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper. 

 

ii. Shri Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-5226 & CP No. 

3599), has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the 

Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  
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iii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is 

to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members who are 

present VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting 

facility. 

 

iv. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at 

the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of  

at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than 

three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes 

cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who 

shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

v. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 

the Company www.sangalpapers.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the 

declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and 

communicated to the BSE Limited. 

 

 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE  
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
The following statement sets out all material facts relating to certain Ordinary Business and all the Special 
Businesses mentioned in the accompanying Notice: 
 
Resolution at Item No. : 4 
 
In terms of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) 2015, the audit committee has recommended on the basis of significant 
experience of the auditor in the field of accounting and legal matters, for the reappointment of M/S RAJ VIYOM & 
Co. (Chartered Accountants) formerly known as M/S RAJ SANDHYA & Co., Muzaffarnagar (Registration No.: 
002011C) and Membership Number of Auditor - 077650, as Statutory Auditor of the company having PAN of the 
Audit Firm - AABFA5349K, Address of the Firm : 572/7 Bhartia Colony, Kukra Road, Muzaffarnagar, U.P. - 251001  
for the period of five years (as second consecutive term) at a remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/- per annum (Rupees 
One Lakh Fifty Thousand only) to the Board of Directors for their approval. Board of Directors has approved the 
recommendation of audit committee and sent for approval of members of the company in the ensuing general 
meeting to pass the ordinary resolution with or without modification as set out in Resolution set out in Item No. 4. 
of the accompanying notice. 
 
None of the Directors and/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financial or otherwise , in the resolution set out at Item No. 4. 
  
 
Resolution at Item No. : 5 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendations of the Audit Committee approved the 
Appointment and Remuneration of MR. S. R. Kapur (M. No.: M-4926), Cost Accountants, to conduct the Audit of 
Cost Records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2023. 
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In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules 2014, the Remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the members 
of the Company. 
 
The Directors recommend the resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the accompanying notice. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is in any way concerned or 
interested in the resolution. 
 
Resolution at Item No. : 6 and 7 
 
The shareholder of the company had, in their meeting on 30

th
 September 2015, increased the borrowing limits of 

the company and authorized the Board of Directors to borrow funds, from time to time, for the business of the 

company, up to an amount, the aggregate, outstanding of which should not exceed, at any given time Rs. 35 crores 

and to create charge on properties of the Company to secure the repayment of the borrowings. Keeping in view, 

the existing borrowing and the additional fund requirements for meeting the capital expenditure for the ongoing/ 

future projects, capacity expansion, acquisitions and enhanced long term working capital needs of the Company, 

the Board considered, approved and proposed for the approval of shareholder, the borrowing limits of the 

company to Rs. 80 crores and creation of security on the properties of the Company and recommends Resolution 

no. 6 & 7 of the accompanying Notice to the shareholder for their approval by way of special resolution.  

Pursuant to Section 180 (1)(c) and 180 (1)(a) of the Companies Act 2013, approval of the Shareholder by way of 

resolution is required to authorized the Board of Directors to borrow moneys up to the said limits and create 

security in respect thereof. 

None of the Directors and/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 

interested, financial or otherwise , in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 &7. 

 
 
 
 

Annexure A  

Details of the Directors seeking Re-Appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (In pursuance of 
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015). 
 

Name of the 

Director  
 

Tanmay Sangal Vinayak Sangal 

Date of Birth 16/10/1985 21/11/1991 
Item Number 2 3 
Date of 
Appointment 

30/11/2003 01/03/2014 

Relationship of 
Directors  

Relative (Son of Mr. Himanshu 
Sangal) 

Relative (Son of Mr. Amit 
Sangal) 
 

Experience in 
Specific functional 
area  

International Business, 
Marketing, Finance and Wide 
Business Administration 
Experience.  

Operations, Raw Material 
and production 
Management Experience. 

Qualification MBA (Finance) B.tech (Mechanical), MBA 
(Operation)  
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Board 
Membership of 
Companies as on 
31

st
 March, 2022 

1. Sangal Papers Limited 1. Sangal Papers Limited 
 

Chairman/Member 
of the Committee 
of the Board of 
Director as on 
31

st
March, 2022 

None Sangal Papers Limited  
1. Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.  

Number of Shares 
Held on 31

st
 

March, 2022 

45731 14487 

 
 

Place : Mawana By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

Date : 01/09/2022 FOR Sangal Papers Ltd.  
CIN : L21015UP1980PLC005138 

 

                    Sd/- 

Arpit Jain 

Company Secretary cum Compliance officer 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
 

To,  
The Members,  
We havepleasure in presenting Forty-Second(42

nd
) annual report of business and operation of your Sangal Papers 

Limited (“The Company”), along with the standalone audited yearly financial statements for the financial year 
ended 31

st
 March, 2022. 

 
COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 
Sangal Papers Limited (herein called “The Company”) was incorporated in the year 1980.The forty twoyear old 
Company is a manufacturer of Newsprint, Writing & Printing paper and other various special paper for domestic 
and exports markets. Each of these products is targeted to meet unique and changing needs of our customers. 
 
The last two years of pandemic has challenged the industry with many obstacles, but reinventing ourselves 
continuously has helped the company to face these challenges and maintain a sustainable growth. We at Sangal 
Papers also believe that our employees are the backbone of our company and aims at safeguarding the health of 
employees. We always believe in cooperation and maintaininggood relations with our all stakeholders. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULT 
The financial statements of the Company have been preparedin accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS)notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 readwith Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
(including any modification if any). The standalone financial highlights of yourCompany for the Financial Year 
ended March 31

st
, 2022 aresummarized as follow, details are based on: 

 

Details of financials as per IND AS:                     Amt. in Rs Lakhs 

Particulars Current Financial 
Year (2022) 

Previous Financial 
Year (2021) 

Revenue from Operations 15499.76 10591.66 

Other Income 64.72 46.73 

Total Income of the Company 15564.48 10638.39 

Profitbefore Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional items and 
Tax Expense 

509.88 370.60 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 143.25 136.39 

Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 366.63 234.21 

Less: Finance Costs 154.80 157.73 

Profit before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 211.83 76.49 

Add/(less): Exceptional items 0 0 

Profit before Tax Expense 211.83 76.49 

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 47.71 11.18 

Profit for the year (1) 164.12 65.30 

Other Comprehensive Income (2) (0.77) 32.80 

Total Comprehensive Income (1+2) 163.35 98.10 

Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 3236.14 3138.04 

Add: Revaluation Reserve 48.56 48.56 

Balance carried forward 3448.05 3284.70 

 
SHARE CAPITAL  
The issued capital, subscribed capital and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31

st
, 2022 was 

Rs. 1,30,72,600 (Rupees One Crore Thirty Lakhs Seventy TwoThousand Six Hundred only) divided in to 13,07,260 
(Thirteen Lakh Seven Thousand Two Hundred Sixty) equityshares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paidup. 
 
During the period under review, there is no change in the share capital of the Company.  
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RESERVE 
The Board of Directors of your company has decided to transfer the profit into the reserve of the company. 
 
DIVIDEND 
The Board of Directors of your Company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances and keeping in 
view the company’s dividend distribution policy, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any 
dividend for future growth of the company for the year under review. 
 
OPERATIONAL REVIEW 
 
Management of the Company deployed the skills and efforts for achieving its objectives and goals. In order to 
achieve the ultimate goal of maximizing the networth of shareholders of the Company by legitimate and fair 
means, while discharging its obligations towards the society and environment through the Corporate Social 
Responsibility.The management aims to be more economical and to bring efficiency in the operations of the 
company. 
 
The company is regularly exploring for growth opportunities in its domestic and international market, over last 
few years the Company has moved closer to the ultimate consumers andhas remained successful in positioning its 
products in a way that consumers can connect with it. The Company has maintained international standards in its 
products.After post pandemic era, the company witnessed a strong momentum in demand and price of paper. 
Theprofit after tax (PAT) except (other comprehensive income) hasincreased significantly by around 151 % 
(approx.) as compared to last year. 
 
The Company has recorded a significant increase in revenue of 46 % (approx.) across all segments as compared to 
last year. During the year under review the Company has achieved a turnover (Revenue from Operations) of Rs. 
(In lakhs)15499.76/- as against previous figure of Rs. (In lakhs)10591.66/-increase in sale by 46 %(approx). 
 

During the year under review PBT (Profit Before Tax) wasRs.(In lakhs) 211.83/- as compared to previous year 

figure of Rs.(In lakhs) 76.49/-,posting anincrease of176 % (approx) in PBT. Net profit and PAT (profit after tax and 

other comprehensive income) were Rs.(In lakhs) 163.35/- as compared to previous year figure of Rs.(In lakhs)  

98.10/- reporting an increase of67 % (approx) in net profit as compared to previous year.Theoperating and fixed 

expenses has increased proportionately during the financial year resulting in lowercost of production and high 

operating profit. 

 
INSTALLED CAPACITY  
The Company’s current installed capacity is 33000 MT per annum.During the year under review there was no 
increment in the installed production capacity of the company. 
 
STATE OF THE COMPANY 
The following statement on the affairs of the company under review: 

1. The Company engaged in single segment i.e. company engaged in manufacturing of Paper.  
2. There is no changes in status of the company. 
3. There is no changes in financial year of the company.  
4. There is no Capital expenditurein Plant and Machineryfor expansion or renovation to improve the quality 

and efficiency of paper which hastaken effect on the financial position of the company. 
5. There are no acquisition, merger, expansion, modernization and diversification during the year in the 

company under review. 
 
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 
Cash & Equivalents as on date 31

st
 March, 2022 was Rs.(In lakhs)14.24/-.The Company continue to focus on 

judicious management of its working capital, receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters are 
kept under strict check through continuous monitoring. 
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EARING PER SHARE (EPS) 
The Earning per equity share of the company for the financial year ended on 31/03/2022 was Rs. 12.56/-per share 
and previous year was Rs. 5.0/-per share. The Company has reported asharp rise of  151 % in EPS for the FY 2021-
2022. 
 
CHANGES IN FUNCTIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY 
Earlier the Company worked as a single unit, but for availing the income tax benefit, the Company was divided into 
two units or undertaking, One was paper manufacturing and Second was power plantunit and both were working 
as independent units under the Name and Style of Sangal Papers Limited.The Board of Directors of the company 
apprised that to achieved maximum productivity with minimum wasted effort or expense and to operate 
businesses efficiently to maximize profits of the company in a well-organized and competent way. For these 
purpose and for availing Income Tax benefit under section 80- IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The power plant 
unit and paper unit is working as a separate unit since 1

st
 April, 2018.But from 1

st
 April 2022 onwards, the company 

united into one single entity as the benefit of taxation gets over after 31
st

 March 2022. 
 
INSURANCE 
The Company’s properties including building, plant and machinery, stocks, stores, etc., have been adequately 
insured against major risks like fire, earthquake, terrorism, burglary etc. 
 
DEPOSITS  
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from public and as such, accordingly no amount, principal or 
interest amount was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet. 
 
CREDIT RATING 

Your Company enjoys credit rating from Brickwork Ratings, The Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. has 
granting credit rating to the company as BWR BBB- (Pronounced as BWR Triple B Minus), Outlook: 
Stable (Reaffirm) for Fund Based - Cash Credit and Term Loan (o/s) and BWR A3 (Pronounced as BWR, 
A Three) (Reaffirm) for Non Fund Based: Bank Guarantee and ILC/FLC for the FY 2021-2022. In case of 
any changes in rating, shall be communicated to the stakeholder by uploading on company website 
www.sangalpapers.com and BSE “www.bseindia.com” immediately. 
 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
The Company has not given or granted any loans or guarantee covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013and other details can find on the Notes to the financial statements of the Company. 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
In the term of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis is set out in this Annual Report. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:  
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is definedin the Internal Audit Manual. To maintain its 

objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to Chairman of the Audit Committee and 

Managing Director. 
 
The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the 
Company. Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along 
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with corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 including any amendments if any, the company’s profit or turnover is below the prescribed limit 

as defined under the act. Therefore,provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company for the FY ended 31
st

 March 2022. 

 

However, CSR funds for the FY ended 2020-2021 has been paid in Clean Ganga Fund in accordance with Schedule 7 

of Companies Act, 2013 with total amount of Rs. 8.71 lakhs. Further detailed report on CSR is annexed with this 

report as Annexure-1. 
 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The information on conservation of energy, technologyabsorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
asrequired to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of TheCompanies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given to the extent applicable herein below: 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
The Paper manufacturing Industries are one of the growing industries in India. The basic need of paper industries is 
raw material i.e. waste paper and energy to produce the final product. Our company is seeking to optimize use of 
energy and installing new equipment for reduce the consumption of energy and pollution at all its manufacturing 
facilities and registered office at Vill. Bhainsa 22km, Meerut-Mawana road, Meerut, UP. The company is ensuring: 
 
A) ELECTRICAL ENERGY: 
(a)A provision of Energy Efficient Pumps for ETP/STP, Water Supply and Fire Systems. 
(b) Use of Energy Efficient LED Lighting for manufacturing and office. 
(c)Optimization of processes and operational control. 
(d) The manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner whereby optimum utilization and maximum 
possible savings of energy is achieved.  
(e) Specific investment has been made to reduce energy consumption by installing VFD’s and other electrical 

equipments. 
(f) As the impact of measures taken for conservation and optimum utilization of energy are not quantitative, its 

impact on cost cannot be stated accurately.  
 
B) WATER: 
(a) Rain water harvesting with Ground Recharge. 
(b) Replacement of underground hydrant and water pipeline with above ground level pipeline toarrest water 
leakages. 
(c) Zero discharge of waste water. 
 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION  
Company's products are manufactured by using In-house know how and no outside technology is being used for 
manufacturing activities. The Company is adopting green initiative for reduce the pollution and being more eco 
friendly. Therefore no technology absorption is required. The Company constantly strives for maintenance and 
improvement in quality of its products and entire in-house Research & Development activities are directed to 
achieve the aforesaid goal. 
 
IMPORTS/ EXPORTS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

A. IMPORTS  
Importedraw materials during the year, detailed as per mentioned in notes of financials statements of the 
company. 
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B. EXPORTS  

The Company exportsthe paper to Gulf,European, Asian and other Countries all over the world, during the 
year exportincreased to Rs. (in lakhs) 1685.60from Rs. (in lakhs) 970.48in the previous year.The Company 
has reported a strong growth of 74% in export for the said financial year. 

Details are provided under the Point 24.A.(ii)of “Notes to Financial Statements” for the financial year ended as on 
31

st
March 2022. 

 
DEVELOPMENTS IN INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS/ HUMAN RESOURCES INCLUDING NUMBER OF EMPLOYEE 
EMPLOYED 
Employee wealth is main key of success of an organization, it is our obligation provide more facilities to the 
employee. The company is a paper manufacturing industry, we arecommitted to maintaining a culture and 
customfor our employee to attract and retain the best talent.During the year under review, your Company enjoyed 
cordial relationship with workers and employees at all levels. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
The Corporate Governance Report, which form an integral part of this Directors’ report, is set out as separate 
Annexure, together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the 
requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated under various regulations of the SEBI (Listing obligations and 
disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on 
prevention of sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. An Internal Complaints 
Committee (“ICC”) has been set up from the senior management which is responsible for redressed of complaints 
related to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the Policy.During the year ended March 31, 
2022 no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment have been received. 
 
DIRECTORS RETIREMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT  
Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company,  
Mr. Vinayak Sangal (DIN NO. 06833351) Director (Non-Executive)retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re- appointment. The Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Vinayak Sangal (DIN: 
06833351) as director of the Company. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mr. Tanmay Sangal (DIN: 01297057) Director (Non-Executive) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Tanmay Sangal (DIN: 
01297057) as director of the Company 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) 
The Board of Director of the Company having such executive and non-executive directors. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. HimanshuSangal (Managing Director), Mr. Amit Sangal (Whole Time Director cum CFO), Mr. Arpit Jain 
(Company Secretary) of the Company. 
 
Directors 
Mr. TanmaySangal (President Marketing cum Director),Mr. VinayakSangal (President Operation cum Director), Mr. 
PremSethi (Independent Director) and Mrs. Geeta Gupta (Independent Women Director)of the Company.       
 
Pursuant to the Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The 
Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Prem Sethi (Non-executive Director) as chairperson of the Board 
of Directors of the company. 
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BOARD EVALUATION 
Pursuant to Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, 
mandate that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The framework includes the 
evaluation of the Board of Directors on various parameters, the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the Working of its Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committees and Stakeholder Relationship Committee.The Board specified the 
manner in which the evaluation has been carried out and explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
The policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining qualification, positive 
attribute and independence of a director and other relevant matter, as required as per section 178(3) of 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, The Board has, 
on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. Remuneration policy has posted on 
website of the Company at www.sangalpapers.com, you may find. The Directors’ appointment and Remuneration 
Policy also stated in Corporate Governance Report. 
 
DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Company received necessary declaration from each independent director under section 149(7) of Companies 
Act, 2013, that Mr. Prem Sethi (Independent Director) and Mrs. Geeta Gupta (Independent women Director) 
meets the criteria of independency laid down in section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 
 
Pursuant to the Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and 
based on the confirmation/affirmation received from Mr. Prem Sethi (Independent Director) and Mrs. Geeta 
Gupta (Independent women Director), that they were not aware of any circumstances that are contrary to the 
declarations submitted by Independent Directors, the Board acknowledges the veracity of such confirmation and 
takes on record the same. 
 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
During the financial year, as per company policy the Board of Directors of the company conduct a separate 
meeting of the independent director for the purpose of evaluation of the Board of Directors as whole and 
individually and also conduct the familiarization program for introduce to the Board attend an orientation 
program. The Details of Training and familiarization program are provided in the corporate governance report and 
also available on website (www.sangalpapers.com) of the company. 
 
BOARD DIVERSITY 
We understand the value and importance of balanced and diverse board in the company. We always support a 
better/best board in the company. The Company believes that a truly diverse board will changes in thoughts, 
perspective, knowledge, skills, industry experience, cultural and geographical background, age, gender that will 
help us retain our competitive advantage.  
 
MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE 
During the financial year 2021-2022, Nine(9) meetings of Board of Directors, Nine (9) Audit Committee Meetings, 
One (1) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings,One (1) Stake holder Relationship Committee 
meetingswere convened and held in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules made thereunder. The details of which given in the Corporate GovernanceReport. The maximum interval 
between any two meeting of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, did not exceed 120 days, as 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
During the year, all the recommendations of Audit Committee were reviews and approved by the Board of 
Directors, if any. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMAPNY 
 
There have no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of the report. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
The Company engaged in single segment i.e. manufacturing of paper, The Company has not undergone any 
changes in the nature of the business during the financial year. 
 
THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and the company’s operation in future. 
 
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, Your directors confirm that: 
 
(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed with no 

material departures;   
(b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair review of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the same period;   

(c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;   

(d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
(e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 

controls areadequate and are operating effectively;   
(f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems are adequate and operating effectively; 
 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
Sangal Papers Limited has formulated a policy on Related Party Transaction. The same is available on the company 
website (www.sangalpapers.com). All the Related Party Transactions are placed before the audit committee for its 
review on quarterly basis. The related party transactions have already been disclosed in the financial statements. 
No transaction of material nature has been entered into by the Company during the year which may have 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company. All related party transactions that were entered into during 
the financial year were on arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no 
materially significant related party transactions made by the company with promoters, key managerial personnel 
or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the Company at large. 
 
All transactions with related partyfall under the scopeof Related Party Transactions are complied with the 
provisions of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Information ontransactions with related parties pursuant 
to section 134(3)(h)of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014 are given in AnnexureII 
in Form AOC-2 and formspart of this report. 
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate company during the relevant 
financialyear2021-2022. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct and which is applicable to the members of the Board and 
all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes in “Zero 
Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings/behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down 
the directives to counter such acts. The code laid down by the Board is known as “Code of Business Conduct” 
which forms and Appendix to the Code and same is available on the company website (www.sangalpapers.com). 
 
The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors 
and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the 
work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on 
the expected behavior from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure. 
 
All the Board members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliances with the code. All 
management Staff was given appropriate training in this regard. 
 
MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  
Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to establish a 
vigil mechanism for directors and employees of the Company. The purpose and objective of this Policy is to provide 
a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects the employees wishing to raise a 
concern about serious irregularities within the Company. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are explained in 
the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company(www.sangalpapers.com). 
 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS  
Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunderM/s Raj Viyom& 
Co., (formerly known as M/s Raj Sandhya & Co.) Chartered Accountants(Registration No.:002011C),Muzaffarnagar 
have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 37

th
annual general meeting held on 29

th
 

September, 2017for a period Five (5) years till the conclusion of 42
nd

 Annual General Meeting and in terms of their 
appointments retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
In terms of provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunderM/s Raj Viyom& Co., 
(formerly known as M/s Raj Sandhya & Co.) Chartered Accountants(Registration No.:002011C) offers themselves 
for re-appointment and confirmed that, they are not disqualified in terms of Section 141 of the Act. As required 
under provisions of Section 139 Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015, the Auditors have confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Board proposes to re-appoint M/s Raj Viyom& Co., Chartered 
Accountants(Registration No.:002011C)as statutory auditor of the company for second consecutive term of Five (5) 
years i.e., from the conclusion of 42

nd
 AGM till the conclusion of 47

th
 AGM to be held in the year 2027. 

 
COST AUDIT  
Pursuant to the provision of the section 148 (3) of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 6 (2) of Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Amendment Rule, 2014 (include any modification or re-enactment thereof, if any) and other 
applicable law, rules or regulations, if any. Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 
6 (2) Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 (include any modification or re-enactment if 
any), the Company has appointed Mr. S. R. Kapur, Cost Accountant (Membership No.:- M-4926), Add.: A-16 (G.F.), 
Ansal Courtyard, Bye Pass Road,Modipuram Crossing, Meerut, UP- 250001, as Cost Auditors of the Company for 
the financial year ended 2023 at such remuneration and other term and condition as may be agree by the Board of 
Directors of the Company and shareholders approval in annual general meeting. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT  
Pursuant to provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,The Board of Directors appointed CS. DK Gupta proprietor of 
M/s D. K Gupta & Co., Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number: 5226, Certificate of Practice Number: 
3599), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022. The Secretarial Audit 
Report is annexed herewith as part of Boards’ report. 
 
AUDITOR’S REPORT/ SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 
There are no observations/qualifications in statutory audit report. The comments in the Auditors Report read with 
the notes to the accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for any explanation under Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. As required under section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has obtained a 
secretarial audit report. Observations, if any made therein are self-explanatory and read with Notes on Account of 
Financial Statement. 
 
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
In January 2015, SEBI notified 
theSEBI(ProhibitionofInsiderTrading)Regulations,2015SEBI(ProhibitionofInsiderTrading) 
(Amendment)Regulations,2018 and SEBI(ProhibitionofInsider Trading) (Amendment)Regulations,2019. Pursuant 
thereto, the Company has formulated and adopted a new Code of practice for fair disclosure of unpublished price 
sensitive information and Code of Conduct.The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares 
and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the 
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Directors and the 
designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code during the FY 2021-22 and the same has been 
informed under Code of Conduct section of this report. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
Pursuant to the Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return with necessary annexure of the 
company for the year 2021-2022,also available on company’s website www.sangalpapers.com under “Financial 
Tab”. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (Effective from 28

th
 August 2020). The detailsforming part of the 

extract of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013in prescribed form MGT -
9 has been dispensed with from FY 2020-2021. Hence detail and information of the same is available on company’s 
websitewww.sangalpapers.com/financials. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  
The provisions of Rule 5 (2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 (include any modification or amendment thereof, if any) requiring particulars of the employees in receipt of 
remuneration in excess of Rupees One Crore and Two Lakh per year and Rupees Eight lakh Fifty Thousand per 
month only to be disclosed in the Report of Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company as none of the 
employees was in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rupees One Crore and Two Lakh per year and Rupees Eight 
lakh Fifty Thousand per month during the financial year 2021-2022.  
The information required under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in the Statement annexed herewith 
as "Annexure –III ". 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:  
Your Company and its Directors wish to extend their sincerest thanks to the Members of the Company , Bankers, 

State Government, Local Bodies, Customers, Suppliers, Executives, Staff and workers at all levels for their 

continuous co-operation and assistance. 
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 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
  

 

       Sd/-        Sd/- 

Date:  01/09/2022    Amit Sangal   HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana     Whole Time Director/CFO                        Managing Director 

DIN- 00091486       DIN -  00091324 
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ANNEXURE “I” TO BOARD’S REPORT 
 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) ACTIVITIES 
 
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014 including any amendments if any, the company’s profit or turnover is below the prescribed limit 

as defined under the act. Therefore, provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company for the FY ended 31
st

 March 2022. 

 

However, CSR funds for the FY ended 2020-2021 has been paid in Clean Ganga Fund in accordance with Schedule 7 
of Companies Act, 2013 with total amount of Rs. 8.71 lakhs. Further detailed report on CSR is annexed with this 
report as Annexure-1. 
 
CSR is a commitment by business to behave ethically and contribute to economic development and to 
improve the quality of life of local community and society at large. It includes ensuring environmental 
sustainability, promoting gender equality, education etc. Business entities can no longer limit 
themselves to using resources, to engage in activities that increase their profits. They have to be socially 
responsible corporate citizens and also contribute to the social good. 
 
We have assumed the above requirement to act in socially diligent manner. We have explored its impact 
on the economic, social and environmental sector which directly affects the relationships with 
employees, society, environment and other stake holders. The Company has developed and 
implemented a policy pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), Rules 2014.  
 

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs. 

 
The Company’s CSR policy has been uploaded and available at the website of the Company 
under the web-link at https://www.sangalpapers.com. 

 
2. Composition of the CSR Committee: NA 

Sl No. Name of Director Designation/Nature 
of Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 
year 

 - - - - 

     

     

 

3. Weblink of Composition of the CSR Committee and CSR Policy,and CSR Projects approved by 

the Board of Directors are disclosed on the website of the company 

athttps://www.sangalpapers.com. 

 

35

https://www.sangalpapers.com/
https://www/


4. Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if any- Not Applicable 

 

5. Amount required for set off for the financial year 2021-22, in pursuance of sub rule (3) of Rule 

7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: NIL 

 

6. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial: NA 

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): NA 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2021-22: NIL 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2022-23: NA 

8. (a) CSR Amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 2021-2022 

Total Amount 
spent for the 
financial year 
FY 2021-22 (In 
Rs.) 

                                                       Amount unspent (In Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
unspent CSR Account as per 
Section 135 (6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135 
(5) 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Name of the Fund Amount Date of 
transfer 

Rs. 8.71 lakh Rs. 8.58 lakhs     NA                  CLEAN GANGA FUNDRs. 8.71 lakhs14
th

 Sep 2021 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year (FY 2021-2022): Not 

Applicable 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year (FY 2021-

2022): NIL 

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment: Not applicable 

(f)  Total amount spent for the financial year 2021-22 (8b+8c+8d+8e): NIL 

(g)  Excess amount for set off, if any: NA 

Sl no. Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

1. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as 
per Section 135(5) to be spent in the FY (2022-2023) 

NA 

2. Total amount spent for the F.Y. 2021-22 Rs. 8.71 lakh 

3. Excess amount spent for the F.Y. 2021-22 Nil 

4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years 

Nil 

5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years (iii-iv) 

Nil 
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceeding three financial years: Nil 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the F.Y. 2021-22 for ongoing projects of the preceding 

financial year(s): Not Applicable 

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, the details relating to the asset so created or 

acquired through CSR spent in the F.Y. 2021-22- Not Applicable 

11. The reason for failure to spend two percent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5): Not 

applicable 

Responsibility Statement by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: Not applicable 
 
As per prescribed limit under the law, company does not require to constitute CSR Committee to 
discharge obligation , monitoring or implementation as the case may be. The same has been taken by 
board of the company in compliance with CSR Objectives and policy of the company. 
 
 
 
 
Place : Mawana   Sd/-      Sd/- 
Date : 01/09/2022    Himanshu Sangal                                           Geeta Gupta 
        Managing Director           Chairperson - CSR Committee 
  DIN - 00091324                                                        DIN - 00095939 
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ANNEXURE “II” TO BOARD'S REPORT 
Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 
 

The Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with its Related Parties which 
is not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length during FY 2021-22. The Company has laid down 
policies and processes/procedures so as to ensure compliance to the subject section in the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the corresponding Rules. In addition, the process goes through internal and external 
checking, followed by quarterly reporting to the Audit Committee. 
 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not 
Applicable 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable 
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188: Not Applicable 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 

SL. 
NO. 

Name of Related 
Party 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
transaction 

Duration of 
contract/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
transactions 
including value 
(Rs. In Lakhs) per 
annum 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any 

1. Mr. TanmaySangal 
(DINNo.:01297057) 

Son of MD (Mr. 
Himanshu Sangal) 

Salary for 
holding office 
or place of 
profit 

Regular Service 30 NIL 

2. Mr. VinayakSangal 
(DIN No.: 
06833351) 

Son of WTD (Mr. 
AmitSangal) 

Salary for 
holding office 
or place of 
profit 

Regular Service 30 NIL 

3. Mrs. IshitaNiyogi Wife of Mr. 
TanmaySangal, 
Director 

Salary for 
holding office 
or place of 
profit 

Regular Service 9.60 NIL 

4. Mrs. Annika Wife of Mr. Vinayak Salary for Regular Service 9.60 NIL 
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Saviola Gracias Sangal, Director holding office 
or place of 
profit 

5. Smt. Renu Sangal Wife of Sh. 
Himanshu Sangal, 
Managing Director 
of the Company 

Rent Regular 4.44 NIL 

  
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

 
 

             Sd/-        Sd/- 

Date: 01/09/2022                                                                             Amit Sangal                              HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana      Whole Time Director/CFO                 Managing Director 
                                                                                                              DIN- 00091486                              DIN - 00091324 
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ANNEXURE “III” TO BOARD'S REPORT 
 

Pursuant to Section 197 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personal)Rules, 2014 

 
Sangal Paper Limitedis paper manufacturing company. The remuneration and perquisites provided to our 
employees including management of the company are on par with industries benchmarks. The Board of Directors 
and Nomination and Remuneration committee continuouslyreview the compensation of our MD, WTD/CFO and 
other KMP to align both the short term and long termbusiness objectives of the company and to link with the 
performance of the directors and KMPs. The details of remuneration to KMP including MD and WTD/CFO in the 
below table: 
 
 

a. Remuneration of Managing Director, Whole Time Director/Chief Financial Officer (CFO): 
 
 
 

 
Name of 
Director 

Directors 
Identification 
Number (DIN) 

Designation Remuneration 
in the year 
2021-22 
(Rs. In Lakhs)* 

Remuneration 
in the year 
2020-21 
(Rs. InLakhs)* 

%increase of 
remuneration 
in fiscal 2022 
as compared 
to 2021* 

The ratio of theremuneration 
of eachdirector to the median 
of remuneration ofemployees 
of the company for the 
Financial Year 2021-2022 

Himanshu
Sangal 

00091324 Managing 
Director 

84 84 NIL 76.17:1 

Amit 
Sangal 

00091486 Whole Time 
Director/CFO 

84 84 NIL 76.17:1 

 
*includes benefits provided by the company to concern MD and WTD during the financial year and remuneration 
drawn during the FY 2021-2022 year. 
 
Note:  

1. The details in the table are on accrual basis. 
2. Remuneration provided to MD and WTD recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and approved by Board of Directors.  
3. Remuneration calculation of MD and WTD/CFO as per Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 and 

othersapplicable rules and regulation. If any. 
 

4. Increase in remuneration of other Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 
 

Name of KMP Title Remuneration in 
the year 2021- 2022 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Remuneration in 
the year 2020-2021 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

% increase of remuneration in 
fiscal 2021-22 as compared to 
2020-21 

Arpit Jain Company Secretary 
cum Compliance officer 

5.32 4.63 3% 

 
 

The details in the above table are on accrual basis. For the purpose of comparisonfor both the financial year 2022 
and financial year 2021 are given for the full year.  
 

5. Remuneration of Directors (Non-executive) other than MD,WTD and KMP: 
 

Name of 
Director 

Directors 
Identification 
Number (DIN) 

Designation Remuneration 
in the year 

2022 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Remuneration 
in the year 

2021 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

% increase of 
remuneration 
in fiscal 2022 
as compared 

to 2021 

The ratio of theremuneration of 
eachdirector to the median of 

remuneration ofemployees of the 
company for theFinancial Year 

2021-2022 

Tanmay 
Sangal* 

01297057 Director Nil Nil NA NA 
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Vinayak 
Sangal* 

06833351 Director NIL NIL NA NA 

PremSethi 07146425 Director NIL NIL NA NA 

Geeta 
Gupta 

00095939 Director NIL NIL NA NA 

 
Note: 
The details in the above table are on accrual basis,for the purpose of comparison for both the financial year 2022 
and financial year 2021are given for the full year.  
*Mr. TanmaySangal, President Marketing/Director and Mr. VinayakSangal, President Operation/Director (Non-
Executive Director) of the Company. They are receiving salary in the capacity of employee not in capacity of 
director since 2017. 
 

6. Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 

Top 10 Employee in terms of remuneration draw during the year: 
 

Employe
e Name 

Designation Education
al 
Qualificati
on 

Experien
ce (in 
years) 

Remunerati
on in 2021-
22 (in Lakhs) 

Previous 
employment 
and 
designation 

Date of 
Commencement 
of employment 

Date of 
Birth/Age as 
on 
01.01.22(in 
years) 

No of 
share 
held as 
on date 
31

st
 

March 
2022 

Relations
hip with 
Director 

TanmayS
angal 

President 
Marketing 

MBA 12 30 Deloitte/ 
Business 
Valuation 
Analysis 

01/01/2017 16/10/1985/
37 

45731 Son of 
Mr. 
Himansh
uSangal, 
MD 

VinayakS
angal 

President 
Marketing 

B.tech., 
MBA 

6.5 30 Godrej 
boyce 
Manufacturi
ng co. ltd./ 
Purchasing 
Manager 

01/04/2017 21/11/1991/
31 

14487 Son of 
Mr. Amit 
Sangal, 
WTD/CF
O 

Praveen 
Agarwal 

VP Plant B.E., 
P.G. 

39 12 Ruchi Paper 
Mill,/GM  

03/04/2017 15/05/1960 
/62 

NA NA 

IshitaNiy
ogi 

President 
Export 

MBA 12 9.60 Google/ 
Account 
Manager 

01/11/2017 05/10/1986/
36 

6864 Wife of 
Mr. 
TanmayS
angal 
 
 

Annika 
Saviola 
Gracias 

President 
Marketing 
North-
South 
Division  

BBA, 
PGDM 

5 9.60 State Street 
Syntel 
Services Pvt. 
Ltd./Deputy 
Manager  

01/03/2020 14/05/1993/
29 

NIL Wife of 
Mr. 
Vinayak 
Sangal 

Arvind 
Sharma 

GM Plant B.O.E. 18 8.50 Shree 
Lakshmi 
Cotsyn Ltd./ 
DGM Power 
Plant 

03/09/2016 01/07/1979/
43 

NA NA 

Dinesh 
Kumar 

GM 
Productio

Diploma 
in Paper 

33 8.40 Shree 
Krishna 

01/10/2001 15/07/1966/
56 

NA NA 
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Sharma n Tech. Paper Mill, / 
Work 
Manager 

Rakesh 
Paspola 
 

Sales 
Manager 

B.A. 27 7.06 NA 01/06/2014 20/06/1968 
/54 

NA NA 

Sanjay 
Kumar 
Agarwal 

GM 
Finance 

M.Com, 
L.LB., CA 

37 6.60 Anand 
Triplex 
Board 
Ltd./GM 
Finance 

01/08/2009 01/07/1966/
56 

60 NA 

Kesho 
Singh 

Electric 
Manager 

M.Tech. 38 6.31 NA 01/07/2008 12/01/1959 
/63 

NA NA 

 
   

7. The percentage increases in the median remuneration of employee in the financial year: 5.23% 
Note: During the year median remuneration of employee increases due to number of employee for the 
financial year 2021-2022 is less than number of employee during the financial year 2020-2021. 
 

8. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31
st

 March, 2022: 263  for the year 
2021-2022. 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31
st

 March, 2021: 266 for the year 
         2020-2021. 
9. Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

financial year 2021-2022 was 3% (estimated) and increase in the managerial remuneration for the same 
financial year was NIL.However, the company is paying fixed remuneration to the individuals based on the 
responsibility and position, the Company is paying remuneration to the Key Managerial Person (KMP) as 
per skills and experience. Increment in Managerial remuneration of the Key Managerial Persons (KMP) 
and MD and WTD as per Managerial Remuneration Policy. 

10. Key parameter for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Director-Variance in 
managerial remuneration as per Managerial Remuneration Policy. 

11. We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees is as per 
the remuneration policy of the Company. 

12. Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the 
current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase or decrease in the market 
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with 
the last public offer: 
  
 Issued Closing EPS PE Ratio Market  

Closing date of the Financial Year 
Capital Market   Capitalization  

(Shares) Price Per 

    
     
  Share   (Rs. in Lakh)  

31.03.2021 1307260 63.05 5.0 12.61 824.23  

31.03.2022 1307260 88.80 12.56 7.07 1160.85  

Increase/(Decrease) - 25.75 7.56 (5.54) 336.62  

% of Increase/Decrease - 40.84% 151 % (44) % 40.84%  
       

 

Market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out 

with the last public offer. 
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The equity shares of the Company were initially listed on BSE Ltd. in the year 1994. The last public offer of the 

equity shares was made in the year 1994 by way of Public issue to the general public in the ratio of 3:1 at a 

price of Rs. 10/- per equity share. As on 31
st

 March, 2022 the market quotation of the Company's share price 

(closing price) was Rs. 88.80 . 

 

k. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 

justification thereof and any exceptional circumstances to increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 

There is only one Managing Director, one Whole Time Director cum Chief Financial Officer (CFO), two non-

executive directors and two Independent Directors. Increment in the remuneration of the Executive Director 

for the respective period as per Managerial Policy and mention in here in below. 

 

(h) Comparison of the each remuneration of the KMP against the performance of the company: 
 

Name 
 

Remuneration of KMP and 
Directors for the period 2021-

2022 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Performance of the Company 
PAT as on 31

st
March 2022 (Rs. In Lakh) 

 

HimanshuSangal 
Managing Director 84 164.12 

Amit Sangal 
Whole Time Director cum CFO 84 164.12 

TanmaySangal 
President Marketing/ Director NIL 164.12 

VinayakSangal 
President Operation/Director NIL 164.12 

Arpit Jain  
Company Secretary 5.32 164.12 

 
 
Note: Mr. TanmaySangal, President Marketing and Mr. VinayakSangal, President Operationis receiving 
remuneration in the capacity Place of Profit, referred to AOC-2 for disclosure regarding this. 
 
(i) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: There is no variable 
component in the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. 
(j) If remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: Yes  
(k) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employee who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: NA 
 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
  

 

             Sd/-         Sd/- 

Date: 01/09/2022                                                                               Amit Sangal                  HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana                                                                     Whole Time Director/CFO                  Managing Director 

 DIN- 00091486                DIN - 00091324 
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FORM NO. MR – 3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2022 
[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 

CompaniesAppointment and Remuneration Personnel Rules, 2014)] 
 
To  
The Members, 
Sangal Papers Ltd.  
CIN:  L21015UP1980PLC005138 
 
 I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by the Sangal Papers Ltd. (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by Sangal 
papers Ltd. (‘the Company’) its officers, agents, and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the statutory provision listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance – mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 

A. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the 
provision of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder; 
II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 
III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder and 

as amended from time to time; 
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI ACT’):- 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares Based Employees Benefits) Regulations 

2014; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

and  
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
 
VI As informed by management other laws applicable to the Company are:- 

1. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 read with The Air (Prevention and 

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1982 
2. Employee's Compensation Act, 1923 

3. Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995 

4. Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 

5. Employees Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

6. Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 

2008 

7. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

8. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 

9. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

10. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

11. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

12. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 read with Water (Prevention & 

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975 

13. Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986 

14. Employees Deposit-Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976 

15. Explosives Act, 1884 

16. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 

17. Income-Tax Act, 1961 | Income-Tax Rules, 1962 

18. Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 

19. Legal Metrology Act, 2009 

20. Competition Act, 2002 

21. Goods and Services Act, 2016 and Rules thereunder, 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of Indiawith 

respect to Board and General Meetings.  
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except: - 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars / 
guidelines including 
specific clause)  

Deviations  
 

Observations/ Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary  
 

1. Regulation 27(2) 
Non-submission of 
theCorporategovernance 
compliance report for 
the quarter ended on 

The requisite 
Corporate 
Governance 
Report For 

The company received a notice 
through mail from BSE on 
21/02/2022 mentioning the non-
compliance of Regulation 27(2) and 
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December 2021 within 
theperiod provided 
underthis regulation i.e. 
(within 21 days from the 
close of respective 
quarter) 

the quarter 
ended on 
December 
2021 was 
filed on 
24/02/2022 

imposing a fine of Rs. 58000/- plus 
GST on the Company. 
 
Management reply on the above 
non-compliance is that the 
Company has downloaded the xbrl 
utility on 15/01/2022 and tried to 
upload the same on that day but 
due to internet breakdown it could 
not be uploaded on BSE website.  
Therefore, non-compliance is 
unintentional.   

 
B. I Further Report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with executive, non-executive and 
independent directors. Based on our examination no changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors took place during the period under review. 

As informed adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda 
and detailed notes on Agenda were sent at generally seven days in advance and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board meetings and committee meetingsare carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of Board of Directors or the Committees of the 
Board as the case may be. 

C. I Further Report that: 

based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company, I am of the opinion that 
there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

D. I Further Report that: 

During the audit period, there was no any other events or actions having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, Guidelines, 
standards, etc.; 

 
Place:  Meerut        for D. K. GUPTA & CO. 

        (Company Secretaries) 
Date: 22nd August 2022          
ICSI UDIN:   F005226D000825848         

       DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 
        (Proprietor) 

        C. P. No.   3599 
FCS  No.   5226 

Peer Review Certificate no. 1993/2022 
 
Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral part of this 
report. 
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‘ANNEXURE  - A’ 

To  
The Members, 
Sangal Papers Ltd.  
CIN:  L21015UP1980PLC005138 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 

Management’s Responsibility 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial   records based on 
my audit.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.  I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion.  

3. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, 
Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 
to the verification of procedure on test basis.  

 
Disclaimer 

5. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.  

 
Place:  Meerut        for D. K. GUPTA & CO. 

        (Company Secretaries) 
Date: 22nd August 2022          
ICSI UDIN:   F005226D000825848         

       DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 
        (Proprietor) 

        C. P. No.   3599 
FCS  No.   5226 

Peer Review Certificate no. 1993/2022 
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Secretarial Compliance Report of Sangal Papers Limited 

For the Financial Year Ended On 31st March 2022 

[Pursuant to SEBI Circular No.  CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th Feb. 2019] 
 
 
 

To  
The Members, 

Sangal Papers Limited   
CIN:  L21015UP1980PLC005138 
Reg. Office:  Village Bhainsa, 22 K. M. Mawana Road, Meerut- 250401 UP  IN 
 
 
I, Dinesh Kumar Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. 5226 and C. P. No. 3599) 
have examined:  
 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by 
Sangal Papers Limited (“the Company”),  
 

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the Company to the stock exchanges,  
 

(c) website of the Company,  
 

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to 
make this certification. 

 
For the year ended on 31st March 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance 
with the provisions of : 

 

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the 
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and  
 

b. the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made 
thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);  
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The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder, have been examined, include: -  
 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  
 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  
 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;  
(Not applicable to the company during the period under review) 
 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the company during the period under 
review) 
 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the company during the period under 
review) 
 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,2013; (Not applicable to the company 
during the period under review) 

 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015;  
 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018; 
 

(j) Any circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder 
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Based on my examination and verification of the documents and records produced to 
me and according to the information and explanations given to me by the Company, I 
report that:  

 
(a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and 

circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified 
below: -  
 

Sl. No. Compliance 
Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars 
/ guidelines including 
specific clause)  
 

Deviations  
 

Observations/ Remarks of 
the Practicing Company 
Secretary  
 

1. Regulation 27(2) 
Non-submission of the 
Corporate governance  
compliance report for 
the quarter ended on 
December 2021 within 
the period provided 
under this regulation i.e. 
(within 21 days from the 
close of respective 
quarter) 

The requisite 
Corporate 
Governance 
Report For the 
quarter ended on 
December 2021 
was filed on 
24/02/2022 

The company received a 
notice through mail from 
BSE on 21/02/2022 
mentioning the non-
compliance of Regulation 
27(2) and imposing a fine of 
Rs. 58000/- plus GST on the 
Company. 
 
Management reply on the 
above non-compliance is 
that the Company has 
downloaded the xbrl utility 
on 15/01/2022 and tried to 
upload the same on that 
day but due to internet 
breakdown it could not be 
uploaded on BSE website.  
Therefore, non-compliance 
is not intentional. It is 
technical due to failure of 
internet service and 
requested to BSE to waive 
off this penalty.  
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(b) The Company has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above 
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from 
my/our examination of those records.  
 
 

(c) The following actions were taken or to be taken against the listed entity/ its 
promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges 
(including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various 
circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder:  
 

Sr. 
No.  
 

Action 
taken 
by  
 

Details of 
violation  
 

Details of action 
taken E.g. fines, 
warning letter, 
debarment, etc.  
 

Observations/ remarks of 
the Practicing Company 
Secretary, if any.  
 

1. BSE Regulation 27(2) 
Non-submission 
of the Corporate 
governance  
compliance 
report for the 
quarter ended on 
December 2021 
within the period 
provided under 
this regulation i.e. 
(within 21 days 
from the close of 
respective 
quarter).  

 

The company 
received a notice 
through mail from 
BSE on 
21/02/2022 
mentioning the 
non-compliance of 
Regulation 27(2) 
and imposing a 
fine of Rs. 58000/- 
plus GST on the 
Company. 

The requisite Corporate 
Governance Report For 
the quarter ended on 
December 2021 was filed 
on 24/02/2022.  
 
Management reply on the 
above non-compliance is 
that the Company has 
downloaded the xbrl 
utility on 15/01/2022 and 
tried to upload the same 
on that day but due to 
internet breakdown it 
could not be uploaded on 
BSE website.  Therefore, 
non-compliance is not 
intentional. It is technical 
due to failure of internet 
service and requested to 
BSE to waive off this 
penalty. 
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(d) The Company was not required to take any action with regard to compliance with 

the observations made in previous reports as the same was not applicable:  
 
 

Sr. 
No.  
 

Observations of 
the Practicing 
Company 
Secretary in the 
previous 
reports  
 

Observations made 
in the secretarial 
compliance report 
for the year ended…  
(The years are to be 
mentioned)  

Actions 
taken by 
the listed 
entity, if 
any  
 

Comments of the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary on the 
actions taken by 
the listed entity  
 

  
There are no observations made in previous Annual Secretarial 
Compliance Report. 

 

 
 

 
Place:  Meerut             for D. K. GUPTA & CO. 

         (Company Secretaries) 

Date: 30th May 2022            

UDIN: F005226D000434611 dated 30th May 2022      

      
       DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 

        (Proprietor) 

        C. P. No.   3599 
M. No.   F-5226 

 
Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE - A’ and forms 
an integral part of this report. 
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‘ANNEXURE  - A’ 

To  
The Members, 

Sangal Papers Limited   
CIN:  L21015UP1980PLC005138 
Reg. Office:  Village Bhainsa, 22 K. M. Mawana Road, Meerut- 250401 UP  IN 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial   records based on 
my audit.  

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.  I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion.  

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.  

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of SEBI laws, Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, 
Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 
to the verification of procedure on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Compliance Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.  

 
Place:  Meerut             for D. K. GUPTA & CO. 

         (Company Secretaries) 

Date: 30th May 2022            

UDIN: F005226D000434611 dated 30th May 2022      

     
       DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 

        (Proprietor) 

        C. P. No.   3599 
M. No.   F-5226 
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SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED (CIN- L21045UP1980PLC005138) 
22- Km – Meerut Mawana Road, Mawana- 250 401, Distt. – Meerut (U.P)  

E- Mail ID:sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com, PH. No. : 01233-271515 

ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

This report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Directors Report for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2022. 
 
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 
Sangal Papers Ltd. strives to adopt the standard of excellence in Corporate Governance. The Company 
has consistently practiced good Corporate Governance norms for the past several years for the efficient 
conduct of its business and meeting its obligations towards all its stakeholders viz, the shareholders, 
customers, employees and the community in which the Company operates. 
 
The Company has established procedures and systems to be fully complied with the requirements 
stipulated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time, under the Chapter IV 
read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 
The Chapter IV read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015 and other related policy adopted by the company has been implemented in a manner 
so as to achieve the objectives of Corporate Governance. 
 
The essential elements of Corporate Governance are fairness, transparency, accountability and 
responsibility towards which company continues to remain committed. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
(i) COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Executive, Non- Executive 
and Independent Directors who have an in- depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise 
in their areas of specialization. 
The Board of the Company comprises Six Directors- Two Executive Directors and Four Non-Executive 
Directors, of whom two are Independent Directors. The current strength of the Board includes one 
Woman Independent Director. 
Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March 2022: 
 
 

Name of 
Director 

Category of 
Directors  

Qualification 
of director 

Experience 
in years 

Expertise in 
area 

Subject to 
retirement 
by rotation  

No. of 
Directorship 
in other 
Company 
(include 
private limited 
company) 

Number of 
Committee 
positions held in 
other 
public companies 

Chairman Member 

Mr. 
HimanshuSangal 

Managing 
Director/ 
Promoter/ 
Executive 

Graduate, 
L.Lb. 

42(Paper 
industries) 
10(Pharma) 

Operation, 
production, 
administrative 
management 

No NIL NA NA 

Mr. Amit Sangal Whole Time 
Director/CFO/ 
Promoter/ 
Executive 

Graduation 
in 
commerce 

29(Paper 
industries) 
12 
(Finance) 

Finance, sale, 
operation, 
raw material 
management 

No TWO(2) NA NA 
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Mr. 
TanmaySangal 

Director/ 
Promoter/ 
Non-
Executive 
 
 
 

MBA 
(Finance) 

13 International 
business, 
Marketing, 
finance and 
business 
administration  

Yes NIL NA NA 

Mr. Vinayak 
Sangal 

Director/ 
Promoter/  
Non-
Executive 
 
 

B.tech., 
MBA 

7.5 Operation, 
raw material 
and 
production 
management  

Yes NIL NA NA 

Mr. Prem Sethi Independent 
Director/ 
Non-
Executive 

Graduate 33 Finance, legal No NIL NA NA 

Mrs. Geeta 
Gupta 

Independent 
Director/ 
Non-
Executive/ 
Women 
Director 

Graduate 28 Finance, 
taxation, audit 

No ONE (1) NA NA 

 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and The Chapter IV read with Schedule V 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, Board has carried out 
an evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the valuation of the working 
of its Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee. The manner in which evaluation has been carried out has been explained in 
the Corporate Governance Report. Mr. Prem Sethi, Non-Executive director of the company appoint as 
chairperson of the Board of Director.  
 

(ii) BOARD MEETINGS DETAIL 

 
The total number of Board Meetings held during the financial year ended as on 31st March 2022 is 
Nine(9).The details are as follows: 
10/05/2021, 30/06/2021, 13/08/2021, 06/09/2021, 09/11/2021, 07/01/2022, 02/02/2022, 12/02/2022, 
19/02/2022. 
 
(iii) Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings: 
 

Name of 
the Director 

Designation/ Category Board Meeting 
Held During 
the Year 

Board Meeting 
attended during 
the year 

Whether 
attended 
last AGM 

HimanshuS
angal 

Managing 
Director/Promoter/Executive 
Director 

9 9 Yes 

Amit Sangal Whole Time Director cum CFO/ 
Promoter/ Executive Director 

9 9 Yes 

TanmaySan Director/Promoter/ 9 9 Yes 
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gal Non-Executive Director 

VinayakSan
gal 

Director/Promoter/ 
Non-Executive Director 

9 9 Yes 

PremSethi Independent Director/ 
Non-Executive Director 

9 
 

9 Yes 

Mrs. Geeta 
Gupta 

Independent Director/ Non-
Executive Director 

9 9 Yes 

 

    

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD  
1. Audit Committee  

 
i) Terms of Reference:  

Apart from all the matters provided in Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit 
Committee reviews reports of the internal auditor, meets statutory auditors as and when 
required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations and other related matters. It 
also reviews major accounting policies followed by the Company.   
In order to effectively discharge their responsibility, the Audit Committee members have been 
empowered: - 

 
- To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.  
- To seek information from any employee of the Company.  
- To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.  
- To invite statutory/ internal auditors.  

 

The Committee acts as a link between the Internal Auditor, Statutory Auditor and the Board of Directors 

of the Company. The Committee reviews the financial statements and other related matters before 

submission to the Board for approval. The audit committee charter containing terms and condition is 

available on our website i.e.www.sangalpapers.com.  

 

ii) Composition :  
The Audit Committee consists of Three Directors, Mr. Prem Sethi, Mrs. Geeta Gupta and Mr. Himanshu 
Sangal. Mrs. Geeta Gupta has been designated and elected as Chairman of the Committee and Mr. 
HimanshuSangal and Mr. Prem Sethi designated as member of the Committee and Committee met 
Nine(9) times on such dates 10/05/2021, 30/06/2021, 13/08/2021, 06/09/2021, 09/11/2021, 
07/01/2022, 02/02/2022, 12/02/2022, 19/02/2022 during the financial year ended March 31st, 2022. 
The attendance records of the members at the meeting were as follows: 
 

 

Name of theMember No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended 
Geeta Gupta  9 9 

PremSethi 9 9 
HimanshuSangal 9 9 

 
2. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE   

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee presently consists of three (3) Directors out Two (2) are 
Independent Directors, One (1) Director is Executive Director:- 
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Name of member No. of Meeting Held No. of Meeting Attend 

Mrs. Geeta Gupta 1 1 

Mr. Prem Sethi 1 1 

Mr. Himanshu Sangal 1 1 

 
There is no pending share transfer as on date where the documents are clear in all respects. During the 
financial year 2021-2022, The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met one (1) time on 18/06/2021, 
during the financial year 2021-2022.The Stakeholders Relationship committee charter containing terms 
and condition is available on our website (www.sangalpapers.com). 
 
Investors' complaints attended and resolved during 2021-22 

Investors' complaints Attended/resolved during 2021-22 

Pending at the beginning of the year 0 

Received during the year 1 

Disposed of during the year 1 

Remaining unresolved at the end of the year 0 

 
3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration committee inter alia include Succession planning for Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Employees, identifying and selection of candidates for appointment 
of Directors/Independent Directors based on certain laid down criteria, identifying potential individuals 
for appointment of Key Managerial Personnel and other senior managerial position and review the 
performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel including Key Managerial 
personnel based on certain criteria approved by the Board. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently consists of Three (3) Directors out Two (2) are 
Independent Directors and One (1) Directors is Non-Executive Director. Such as, Mrs. Geeta Gupta as 
Chairman (Independent Non- Executive Director) as Chairperson of the committee, Mr. Prem Sethi 
(Independent Non- Executive Director) and Mr. Vinayak Sangal (Non- Executive Director) as members of 
the Committee as on 31.03.2022. The Committee ensures appropriate disclosure on the remuneration 
of Directors and deals with the remuneration package of Directors, Service Contract, Notice Period, 
Severance Fees and Stock Option, If any. Sitting fee of Rs. 2000/- per meeting is payable to all non-
executive directors except the promoter group directors, who attended the Board Directors meetings 
and committee meetings held during the year. No shares of the Company are held by independent 
directors. The Committee met during the year one (1) time as on 06/09/2021.Chairperson and all 
members were presented. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee charter containing terms and 
condition is available on our website i.e.www.sangalpapers.com. 
 
Payment to Managing Director and Whole Time Director/CFO: On Annual basis 

Name of the Director Designation Remuneration(Rs. In Lakhs) 
Mr. HimanshuSangal Managing Director 84 
Mr. Amit Sangal Whole Time Director/CFO 84 

 

Payment to Director (other than Managing Director and Whole Time Director/CFO): 

Name of the Member Designation Remuneration(Rs. In Lakhs) 
Mr. Tanmay Sangal President Marketing/ Director NIL 
Mr. Vinayak Sangal President Operation/Director NIL 
Mr. Prem Sethi Director NIL 
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Mrs. Geeta Gupta Director NIL 
*Mr. Tanmay Sangal, President Marketing and Mr. Vinayak Sangal, President Operation receiving 
monthly salary in the capacity of employee of the company not in the capacity of director of the 
Company. 
 
Payment sitting fees to Non-Executive Directors (Independent Directors): 

Name of the Member Designation Setting Fees (Per Meeting) 

Mr. PremSethi Director Rs. 2,000/- 

Mrs. Geeta Gupta Director Rs. 2,000/- 
The Company is paying sitting fees only to independent directors not to others. 
 
4. BOARD MEMBERS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
 
Pursuant to the provision of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee have carried out the 
annual evaluation of performanceof individual Board of Directors and Independent Directors as 
individual for the ended financial year. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning 
such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and 
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. A separate exercise was carried out to 
evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairperson of the Board, who were 
evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgment, 
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation 
of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
Non observation find out in evaluation of Board of Directors of the company, so it does not require to 
any action.  
 
5. Directors’ appointment and Remuneration Policy: 
 
Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management  
 
i. Appointment criteria and qualifications 
a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board 
his/her appointment.  
 
b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise 
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.  
 
c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director 
who has attained the age of seventy years, subject to the conditions. Provided that the term of the 
person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 
shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice 
for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 
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ii. Term / Tenure 
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 
Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a 
time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 
 
b) Independent Director: - An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. - No Independent 
Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be 
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in 
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a 
person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as on 
specified date or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as per regulatory 
requirement; he/she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years only. At the time of 
appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and 
three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Managing Director 
or Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 
 
iii. EvaluationThe Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP, 
Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly). 
 
iv.Removal Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable 
Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons 
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the 
provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 
 
v. The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even 
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 
 
5. Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel 
i. General: 
a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel will be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. shall be 
subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, 
wherever required.  
 
b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with 
the percentage/slabs/conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as per the 
provisions of the Act.  
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c)Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of 
Whole-time Director.  
 
d) Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them 
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 
 
ii. Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel: 
a) Fixed pay: The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. 
The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including employer’s contribution to P.F, 
pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the 
Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.  
 
b) Minimum Remuneration: If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous 
approval of the Central Government.  
 
c) Provisions for excess remuneration: If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or 
indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or 
without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he/she shall refund such sums to 
the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not 
waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 
 
iii. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:  
a) Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and 
conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.  
 
b) Sitting Fees: The Non – Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not 
exceed Rs. One Lakh per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by 
the Central Government from time to time.  
 
c) Commission: Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject 
to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions 
of the Act.  
 
d) Stock Options: An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 
 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS  
i) The details of the last three Annual General Meetings are held as under:  
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Financial 

Year Date Time Venue and Medium 
No. of Special Resolution 
Passed  

2020-21 29/09/2021 01:00 PM 
Vill. Bhainsa, 22km., Mawana Road, Meerut, 
Online Four (4)  

2019-20 29/09/2020 10.00 A.M. 
Vill. Bhainsa, 22km., Mawana Road, Meerut, 
Online NIL  

2018-19 28/09/2019 11.00 A.M. 
Vill. Bhainsa, 22km., Mawana Road, Meerut, 
Offline Four (4)  

 
i) Postal Ballot : 
For the year ended as on 31st March, 2022, therewere no ordinary or special resolution passed by the 

company through postal ballot. 

 

7. SUCESSION POLICY: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board of Directors of the Company on 

the leadership succession plan and prepare contingency plans for succession in case of any exigency.  
 
 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
Pursuant to the Section 134(3) of Companies Act, 2013, The Company has a risk management program 
which comprises of a series of processes, structures and guidelines to assist the Company to identify, 
assess, monitor and manage its business risks, including any material changes to its risk profile.  
The objective and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises: 
 
i) Oversight of the risk management performed by the executive management. 
 
ii) Review of the risk management policy inline with legal requirements and SEBI guidelines.  
 
iii) Reviewing risks and initiating mitigation actions. 
 
9. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING:  
 
As per Company annual strategy and planning, a Familiarization program of the independent directors of 
the company conducted by the company during the financial year ended on 31st March 2022. All 
Independent Director of the company introduce to the Board attend an orientation program. In 
accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation, 2015 a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 
Wednesday, 09thDay of February, 2022. Mr. Prem Sethi was unanimously elected as Chairman of the 
meeting and Mrs. Geeta Gupta was presented at the said Meeting. 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on February09th2022 inter alia, to discuss: 
1. Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole; 
2.Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 
Executive and Non Executive Directors. 
3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. All the 
independent Directors were present at the meeting. 

 

10. SHAREHOLDERS: 
(a) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS: 

The quarterly, half yearly and annually results are communicated to the BSE limited, where the 
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company’s share are listed as soon as they are approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors 
of the Company. Further, the results are published in news papers of Financial Express (English language 
News paper) and Jansatta (Hindi language News paper). The results are not sent individually to the 
shareholders. The financial results are also displayed on the web site of the company at 
www.sangalpapers.com> Click Investors Tab  > Click on  Financials Tab. 
As per SEBI guideline the Company has maintained website namely www.sangalpapers.com providing 
the basic information about the company such as details of our business, financial information, 
shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate governance, contact information of the designated 
officials of the company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor grievance etc. the 
information provided on the website is being updated regularly. 
  

(i) Complaints and Grievances: 
In line with the existing provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Company has created a separate e-mail 
address sangalinvestors1980@gmail.com to receive complaints and grievances of the investors. 
 

(ii) Share Transfers Agents: 
M/s. Mas Services Limited, T-34, 2nd Floor Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 
E-mail: sm@masserv.com, investor@masserv.com, Phone No.: 011- 26387281-82-83. 
 

(iii) Share Transfer System: 
All physical share transfers are completed within 15 days of lodgment, subject to the documents 
being in order. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by NSDL/CDSL 
through the respective Depository Participant. 
 

11. PARTICULARS RELATING TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every 
individual working in its premises through various policies and practices. The Company always 
endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment 
including sexual harassment. The Company has adopted a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace which aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for 
identification, reporting and prevention of undesired behavior. An Internal Complaints Committee 
(“ICC”) has been set up from the senior management which is responsible for redressed of complaints 
related to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the Policy. 
During the year ended March 31, 2022 no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment have been 
received. 

(i) Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil 
(ii) Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil 
(iii) Number of complaints pending as at the end of the financial year: Nil 
 

12. AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
A Certificate has been obtained from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the 

provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid down inChapter IV of SEBI(Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015of the said company with stock exchanges. 

 

13. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
The MD and CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 certifying that the financial statements do not contain any 

untrue statements and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company's affair. The said 

certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

Annual General Meeting : 
 

Date Wednesday, 28th September 2022 
Time 01:30 P.M. 
Place Through Video Conferencing/OAVM 


Please note that Annual Report and Notices shall be mailed to the shareholders who have registered or 
updated their email id’s with the company. 
 
NOTE : 
 
Investors/Shareholders are requested to update their email id, mobile no., Bank details and Nominee 
details with the company by contacting our Company’s RTA (Registrar and Share Transfer Agent) by 
emailing at investor@masserv.com and Contact No. – 01126387281-82-83 or visit www.masserv.com. 
 
Financial Year 

The Financial Year of the Company is from 1stApril2021to 31stMarch 2022 for which this report is prepared. 
 
Financial Calendar (tentative dates) 

First quarter results (June 30) By first half of August 2022 
Second quarter results (September 30) By first halfof November 2022 
Third quarter results (December 31) By first halfof February 2023 
Fourth quarter & annual audited results of the current Financial Year (March 31) By Second halfof May 2023 


Listing in Stock Exchange and Stock Code:  

Name of Stock Exchange: BSE 
Scrip Code:(516096) 
Scrip ID:SANPA 
ISIN: INE384D01022 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:  

MAS SERVICES LTD., 

Address: T-34, IInd Floor, OkhlaIndustrial Area, Phase- II, New Delhi- 110020. 

Phone No.: 011-26387281 - 82 - 83  
Mail ID: sm@masserv.com, investor@masserv.com 
 

Confirmation of payment of Annual Listing Fees of BSE: 
The Company has paid the listing fees and any other fees, if any of BSE Limited for the financial year 
2021-2022 and 2022-2023. 
 

Market Price Data: 
High/Low of Market price of Company's equity share traded on the BSE, during the financialyear ended 
on 31stMarch2022 was as follows: 
 

Month High Low 

April 2021 78.90 61.55 
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May 2021 85.00 62.35 

June 2021 90.80 77.25 

July 2021 110.50 80.75 

August 2021 119.95 87.00 

September 2021 116.20 97.05 

October 2021 137.15 102.65 

November 2021 112.20 85.50 

December 2021 110.00 81.25 

January 2022 101.40 85.00 

February 2022 98.90 77.40 

March 2022 95.90 68.50 

 Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2022. 

No. of 

shareholder 
Percentage 

total (%) 

Size of 
Shareholding 

No. of Share Amount in Rs. Percentage 

total (%) 

8179 98.353 1 to 5000 503614 5036140 38.524 
75 0.902 5001 to 10000 57550 575500 4.402 
30 0.361 10001 to 20000 38941 389410 2.979 
6 0.072 20001to 30000 15295 152950 1.17 
8 0.096 30001 to 40000 25267 252670 1.933 
1 0.012 40001 to 50000 4920 49200 0.376 
6 0.072 50001 to 100000 45853 458530 3.508 
11 0.132 100001 to above 615820 6158200 47.108 

8316 100 Total 1307260 13072600 100 

 

 Shareholding Pattern: Shareholding pattern of the company as on 31st March, 2022. 

Sr. No. Category No. of 
Share 

% of 
Shareholding 

1. Promoters (Individuals) 516042 39.48% 

2. Other than promoters (Individuals)  774848 59.27% 

3. Corporate bodies 13172 1.01% 

4. Financial Institutions/Bank and 
Mutual Funds 

0 0.00% 

6. Venture capital Fund 0 0.00% 

7. NRI’s (Repeated and Non-Repeated) 2840 0.21% 

8. Clearing Members  358 0.03% 

 Total 1307260 100.00% 

 

 Share held in physical and Dematerialized From: 
As on March 31st, 2022 
TOTAL SHARE HOLDERS IN NSDL  787 TOTAL SHARES IN NSDL  1,93,328 
 TOTAL SHARE HOLDERS IN CDSL 749TOTAL SHARES IN CDSL  6,76,932 
 TOTAL SHARE HOLDERS IN PHY.  6804 TOTAL SHARES IN PHY    4,37,000 
TOTAL                                          8,340     13,07,260 
Note: 24 (TWENTY FOUR) shareholders are common in demat and physical. 
 

 Outstanding GDR’s/ADR’s/Warrant’s/Convertible instruments and their impact on equity. 
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NIL. 

 Foreign Exchange risk and hedging activity: 
NIL 

 Book Closure: 
The register of Members and share Transfer books of the company shall remain closed from 
September 22, 2022 to September 28, 2022 (both days inclusive). 

 Registered office/Plant locations and address for correspondence:  
Sangal Papers Limited’s plant and registered office situated at: 
Village Bhainsa, 22km stone, Meerut-Mawana road, Mawana, Meerut, UP- 250401 

 CREDIT RATING: 
Your Company enjoys credit rating from Brickwork Ratings, The Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. 
has granting credit rating to the company as BWR BBB- (Pronounced as BWR Triple B Minus), 
Outlook: Stable (Reaffirm) for Fund Based(Cash Credit and Term Loan (o/s)) and BWR A3 
(Pronounced as BWR, A Three) (Reaffirm) for Non Fund Based: Bank Guarantee and ILC/FLC for 
the FY 2021-2022. However for the FY 2022-2023, the rating shall be uploaded on  company’s 
website www.sangalpapers.com > under Investors Tab > under Financials Tab and to the BSE 
(www.bseindia.com) immediately once assigned by credit rating company, if any. 

 
DISCLOSURE: 
Disclosures on materially significant Related Party Transactions (RPT) that may have potential conflict 
with the interests of company at large. 
 
BSE complies with the disclosure requirements as prescribed in Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) applicable to 
listed companies relating to Related Party Transactions (RPT). Details of material RPT are informed to 
the Board on a yearly basis, AOC-2 alongwith financial results. The details of policy on dealing 
withrelated party transactions is available on the website www.sangalpapers.com. 
 
Total fees for all services paid by the company to the statutory auditors for the financial year 2021-
2022: 
The Company’s statutory auditor M/s Raj Viyom & Co., ICAI (Firm Registration No.: 002011C) (formerly 
known as Raj Sandhya & Co.), Chartered Accountant, Raj Kumar Sharma (Membership No.: 077650), 
total fees for all services rendered by the statutory auditors towards the company and the Company 
paid total Rs. 1,50,000/- (One Lakh Fifty Thousands) to the statutory auditors for the financial year 2021-
2022. 
 
Certificate from Mr. DK Gupta, proprietor M/s DK Gupta & Co., Company Secretary in Practice that 
none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from the being 
appointed or continuing as directors of the companies by the Board/MCA: 
 
A certificate from Mr. DK Gupta proprietor M/s DK Gupta & Co., Company Secretary in Practice, 
certificate attached herewith. 
 
Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, structures imposed by SEBI or any statutory 
authority, on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years: 
The Company always strive to complied with the requirements of the Stock exchange, SEBI and other 
statutory authority on all matters related to capital markets from time to time as required through 
circulars and notifications etc. However, during the FY 2021-2022 the company has been imposed with 
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the fine of Rs. 58000 (excl. GST) due to non compliance under Reg. 27 (2) of SEBI (LODR) 2015 read with 
vide circular no. – SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated 22nd January 2020. The company filed the 
necessary return immediately as came to knowledge through email received from BSE. The company has 
applied and written to BSE for waiver off such fine with detail reason of missing of filing return under 
respective regulation. Any further action taken or relief provided by BSE in this regard shall be uploaded 
to company’s website “www.sangalpaper.com” and BSE www.bseindia.com immediately. 
 
Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no personnel 
have been denied access to the audit committee; 
The details of the policy on whistle blower is available on the website and you can find the same on 
www.sangalpapers.com. The Company confirms that no personnel have been denied access to the audit 
committee. 
 
Compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance: 
The Company has mutatis mutandis complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated 
in Listing Agreement as well as SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries:NA 
 
DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT AND CODE OF ETHICS  
The board has laid down the standard procedure of business code of conduct and code of ethics which is 
expected to be followed by the directors which is being followed by them. The board of directors has 
laid down/adopted a Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics for all Board members of the Company and 
such policies are on the Company website i.e.www.sangalpapers.com. All Board Members have affirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct for the financial year 2021 - 22. 
 

               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
  

         Sd/-       Sd/- 

Date:  01/09/2022                                                                          Amit Sangal                         HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana                                                                     Whole Time Director/CFO         Managing Director 
                                                                                                       DIN- 00091486                                  DIN- 00091324 
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CERTIFICATE OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors, 
Sangal Papers Limited, 
Vill. Bhainsa, 22km stone, Meerut-Mawana road, 
Mawana, Meerut, UP 
 
We have reviewed the financial statement and the cash flow statement of Sangal Papers Ltd. For the 
financial year2021-22 and certify that: 
 

a) These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief : 
l. Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain 

statements that might be misleading. 

II. Present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable law and regulations.  

 

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of 

the Company's Code of Conduct.  

 
 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such 

reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in 

the design operation of such internal controls, of which we are aware of and the steps taken 

and/or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.  

 
 

d) We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee : 
i) Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporting during the year.  

 
ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and these have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements.  

 
 

e) To the best of our and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the 

management or employees having a significant role in the Company's internal control systems 

with respect to financial reporting.  
 

 
               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
  

 

       Sd/-      Sd/- 

Date:  01/09/2022                                                                          Amit Sangal                                  HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana                                                                     Whole Time Director/CFO                   Managing Director 
                                                                                                       DIN- 00091486                                  DIN- 00091324 
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Raj Viyom & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Ref.No. 

Mobile: +91- 9105875000 
572/7, Bhartiya Colony, 

UZAFFARNAGAR-251001 

\ Dated . .......... . 

AUDITOR'S COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORAfTE GOVERNANCE 
The Members 
Sangal Papers Limited, 
Viii. Bhainsa, 22km stone, Meerut - Mawana road, Mawana, Meerut, UP 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Gov rnance by Sangal Papers Limited For the year ended March 31 5
\ 2022 stipulated in Ch pter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said company with stock exchanges. 

The Compliance of condition of Cqrporate Governance is e responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the procedures an implementation thereof, adopted by the Company to ensure Compliance with the condition o Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial st tements of the Company. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to th we certify that the Company has fully complied with all mandato Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI (listing Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

explanations given to us, 
Conditions of Corporate 

bligations & Disclosure 

IYOM &Co., 
Accountants, 
Regn. No. 002011 C 

Dated: 19.08.2022 
Place: Muzaffarnagar 

CA Raj K mar Sharma 
P rtner 

Members ip No.: 077650 
UDIN:22 77650APKXZM1786 

Contact No. Mob. No. 9927004815 (Rajkumar Sharma) 
Email Id : carajviyom.@gmail.com 



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
 

Pursuant to the Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015. Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the management discussion and analysis report for the 
year ended on March 31st, 2022. 
Sangal Papers Limited (hereinafter called “The Company”) incorporated in the year 1980and having 
registered office in the state of Uttar Pradesh. The company is engaging in manufacturing of News Print 
paper and other various variety of color papers. We manufacture paper on customized requirement of 
the customers. The management discussed the various aspects and come out this summary: 
 
A) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT: 
Paper is the cultural barometer of the nation. We need paper every day for widening the frontier of our 
knowledge or to transport or supply any goods or commodity. Pulp and paper constitute one of the 
most important segments forpaper industry and is treated as a basic requirement. As per IPMA’s (Indian 
Paper Mills Association) estimates, this industry contributes approximately provides employment to 
more than 5 lakh people and indirectly 1.5 million people. The Broad characteristics of the industry are 
that it is capital, raw material, energy and water intensive and highly fragmented (small units account 
for 60% of the industry size). Globally over 400 million tonnes of paper and paper products are 
consumed. The world's three largest paper producing countries are China, the United States, and Japan 
(these three countries account for approximately half of the world's total paper production), while India 
accounts for a small but growing share of the global market. The Indian Paper & Paperboard industry is 
one of the oldest organized manufacturing industries in India and the first paper mill was started in 1812 
in Serampore, West Bengal. The Indian paper industry accounts for approximately 5% of the world’s 
total production of paper.  
 
During the financial year 2021-2022 the paper and paper product industry in india seen a  significant rise 
in demand in domestic and export market due to strong growth in organized retail sector and reopen of 
schools and colleges after covid pandemic. The Sangal Papers Limited (“The Company”) has reported a 
growthof 46% (approx) in turnover, (total Income) andprofit after tax (PAT)increased by 150% (*details 
based on 2021-2022 and 2020-2021financials of the company) during the financial year. Paper pervades 
all sectors of our activity from book to bullets and from morning newspaper to nuclear technology. 
Indian paper industry is highly fragmented with varying sizes ranging from 10 tpd to 1500tpd. In global 
context, India is one of the fastest growing markets for paper and paper consumption in the country is 
estimated to touch 30 million tons by 2026-27. Our company also engaged in manufacturing of news 
print paper and the newsprint sector in India is governed by the Newsprint Control Order (NCO), 2004. 
At present there are more than 120 mills registered under the Schedule of the NCO. 
 
B) Opportunities and Threats:     
The Company’s products have beenenjoying consistently good brand image andloyalty from the 
consumers for the past several years and the company is optimistic on increasing thesale of the paper 
product in India. Firstly, due to increase of organized retail sector and e-commerce in the country and 
secondly, with reopen of schools and colleges. After post pandemic era, paper industry witnessed a 
strong demand in packaging paper and writing or printing paper in India as well as globally. As per IPMA 
(Indian Paper Manufacturers Association) estimates a growth of 7 % on year on year basis annually. 
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Your company is manufacturing paper on demand of the Customer, ourproduction and market size is 
negligible in paper industry. We are manufacturing News print and writing printing paper, the prices of 
News print paper decided by international market, large manufacturer and publishers of Newsprint 
(Buyer)on quarterly basisas per the availability of indigenousand imported news print paper in the 
market. 
In the reference of pricing of writing printing paper and other various variety of paper,our company is 
very small company by size and value. We are following price decided by the customer and the market 
forces. We are only price takers and not setters. The price of paper is determined/decided by taking into 
various factors like quantity, quality etc. 
Current year sale (total revenue from operations) of product involves domestic sale and abroad sale of 
our product during the year ending 31st March, 2022 of Rs. 15499.76(Rupees in Lakh)increased 
with46%approx. as compared to last fiscal. The company is also trying to utilise full capacity of 
production for better and economical use of the resources. Raw material use by the company is one of 
the best quality of its category with strong quality checks, the availability of raw material for production 
is depend on the availability in the market and as well as price consideration. The Company is also 
considering on the using of best technologies in the production for economical uses of the production 
capacity with minimal wastage. 
 
Manufacturing of paper involves very high volume of water and electricity, which results in creating 
pollution to the environment which is one of the biggest threats to the paper industry. To overcome this 
challenge, industry requires to adopt latest technology machines and pollution reducing equipment’s or 
filters to curb pollutionwhich involves high cost and time as required to obtain environmental clearance 
from the government. 
 
C) Segment: 
Asper IndAS 108 required to information in business report about reporting segment and related 
disclosures about product and services, geographic areas and major customers. Based on the 
management approach as definedin IND AS 108, the Chief Operation Decision Maker (CODM) evaluated 
the company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of single segment and 
geographic segment. Accordingly, the information has been presented both along business segment and 
geographic segment. 
Sangal Papers Limited engaged in single segment of business, paper manufacturing is our primary 
business activity. 
In geographic segment, the company is selling its paper in India and exporting to Sri Lanka, Singapore, 
Nepal, Iran, United Arab Emirates and other various countries.  
In the significant customers, our company is paper manufacturing and selling the paper to pan India and 
export to many countries.  
As per IND AS and as the standalone balance sheet of the company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2022, the total income of the company (including other income) of Rs. 15564.48/- (Rs. in Lakh, 
approx.) (current year) and of Rs. 10638.39/-(Rs. in Lakh, approx.) (previous year) increased about 46% 
(approx.) and total expenses of the respected year of Rs. 15352.65/- (Rs. in Lakh, approx.) (current year) 
and of Rs. 10561.90/-(Rs. in Lakh, approx.)(previous year) expenses increased about 45% (approx.). 
Profit after Tax (PAT) of the company for the relevant periodof Rs.164.12/- (Rs. in Lakh, approx.) (current 
year) and of Rs. 65.30/-(Rs. in Lakh, approx.) (previous year), profit after tax increasedabout 151% 
(approx.).Despite of challenges due to Covid19 which affects (decline) the global demand significantly in 
last two years. Now, as the economic activity opens up in the post-pandemic era, the growth 
momentum is likely to get further acceleration in coming months ahead. 
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D) Outlook and other concerns: 
This Section lists future based statement, it depend on the present and future Market and paper 
industry situations and also involvement of risk and uncertainties.  
After outbreak of CoVID-19 pandemic situation in last two years which drastically decline demand of 
paper. But now, after vaccination to all citizens of India and decline in cases of Covid affected people, 
the economic situation becoming favourable and accelerated the manufacturing sector  with rising 
demand of goods and services globally. The smooth availability of trucks, loading/unloading crew etc. 
were put in place which ensured the better flow of materials across the country. There has also been 
witnessed with strong demand of packaging paper due to increase in organized retail sector. Reopen of 
educational institutions and other organisations added demand of writing and printing paper too. 
 
For Indian paper industry, biggest concern is the use of high volume of water and electricity 
consumption in manufacturing process which creates pollution in the environment. Due to which to 
reduce such pollutionfilters and upgradation in technology requires from time to time which involves 
heavy investment in CAPEX which is a continuous challenge to small scale paper manufactures in this 
price sensititive commodity (paper) market.  
 
CARE Ratings or IPMA (Indian Paper Manufacturers Association)estimates a growth of 6 – 7 % on year 
on year basis and will reach 30 million tonnes by FY 2026-2027 largely driven by emphasis on 
education and literacy coupled with growth in organized retail, according to industry body IPMA.  
 
The growth will be largely driven by printing & writing and packaging & paper board segment. The 
Indian paper industry can be broadly classified into three segments:  
1. Printing & writing (P&W): Printing and writing segment caters to office stationary, textbooks, copier 
papers, notebooks etc. This segment forms ~31% of domestic paper industry. Governments thrust on 
education through steps like Right to Education, Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan, rise in service sector are key 
factors contributing to the growth of this segment.  
2. Packaging & paper board: Packaging paper & board segment caters to tertiary and flexible packaging 
purposes in industries such as FMCG, food, pharma, textiles etc. This segment forms ~47% of the 
domestic paper industry. This is currently fastest growing segment owing to factors such as rising 
urbanization, increasing penetration of organized retail, higher growth in FMCG, pharmaceutical.  
3. Newsprint: Newsprint serves the newspaper & magazines industry. This segment forms ~18% of 
Indian paper industry. This segment is under stress due to lower growth rates and import threat. 
 
Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these statements a result of certain 
factors. The company will try or make efforts to increase in the revenue and profit of the company in 
future. The company will also try to enter in new geographical area for capturing more market and 
increased in the percentage of participatein the national and international market. A large portion of the 
revenue is dependent on the top clients of the company and the loss of any one of major client cloud 
significantly impact of the business. We may be the subject of litigation which, if adversely determine 
could harm our business and operating result. 
 
E) Internal Financial Control and their adequacy: 
The Company identifies a risk based internal audit scope and assesses the inherent risk in the processes 
and activities of the department within the company and ensures that appropriate risk management 
limits, internal control mechanisms and mitigation strategies are in place. The Internal Auditors, via, 
their internal audit reports, make suggestion for better application of policies and rules relating to the 
deficiencies/non-compliance of various audit areas and give suggestions/recommendations and control 

71



directives like periodic reconciliation, proper authorizations/approvals, processing controls, segregations 
of duties, maker-checker approach, etc. soas to mitigate thedeficiencies and make the process, 
procedure, systems and functions more robust, accountable, reliable and compliant. The suggestions 
made by the Internal Auditors and the compliances thereof are placed before the Audit Committee. The 
Audit Committee of the company, the details of which have been providedin the Corporate Governance 
Report. The Committee reviews audit reports submitted bythe Internal Auditors. Internal Financial 
Control’s Suggestions for improvement are considered and the Committee follows up on the 
implementation of corrective actions. The Committee also meets the Statutory Auditors to ascertain, 
inter alia, their views on the adequacy of internal control systems in the company. 
 
F) Financial Performance: 
 
Funds (Equity): 
AS per present capital structure of the company i.e. we have authorized capital is Rs. 7,00,00,000/- 
divided into 70,00,000 equity share of Rs. 10/- each. The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital is Rs. 
1,30,72,600/- divided into 13,07,260 equity share of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
 
Other Funds (Other equity): 

1. Revaluation Reserve 
As per standalone balance sheet for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022: Revaluation Reserve as 
on 31st March, 2021 of Rs. 48.56 (Rupees in Lakhs) and on 31st March, 2021 of Rs. 48.56 (Rupees in 
Lakhs). 
 

2. Retained Earnings 
As per standalone balance sheet for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022: The retained earnings as 
on 31st March, 2021 ofRs. 3236.13(Rupees in Lakhs) and on 31st March, 2022 of Rs.3399.49(Rupees in 
Lakhs). 
 
Revenue of Operations: 

1. Sale of Product 
As per standalone balance sheet of the company that total revenue from operation during the relevant 
period as on 31st March, 2021 of Rs. 10591.66(Rupees in Lakhs) and as on 31st March, 2022 of Rs. 
15499.76 (Rupees in Lakhs),revenue of the company increased with46.34%in the relevant period. 
 

2. Other Income 
As per standalone balance sheet of the company that total other income of the company as on 31st 
March, 2021 of Rs. 46.73 (Rupees in Lakhs) and as on 31st March, 2022 of Rs.64.72(Rupees in 
Lakhs),other income of the company increased with38.50% approx. in the relevant period. 
 
Earning/Profit of the Company: 
As per standalone balance sheet of the company that total profit earn by the Company during the period 
April, 2021 to March, 2022. 
 

1. Profit before Tax (PBT) 
As per standalone balance sheet of the company that Profit before Tax of the company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2021 of Rs. 76.49 (Rupees in Lakhs) and as on 31st March, 2022 of 
Rs.211.83(Rupees in Lakhs), Profit Before Tax increased  with177% approx. 
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2. Profit after Tax (PAT) 
As per standalone balance sheet of the company that Profit after Tax of the company for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2021, of Rs. 65.30(Rupees in Lakhs) and as on 31st March 2022, of 
Rs.164.12(Rupees in Lakhs), Profit after Tax increased with151% approx.. 

3. Earning per equity share 
As perstandalone balance sheet of the company for the financialyear ended 31st March, 2021, of Rs. 
5.0(Basic and Diluted) and as on 31st March2022 of Rs.12.56(Basic and Diluted). The Earning Per Share 
(EPS) of the company increased  with151%. 
The financial performance of the company during the year is satisfactory. After  post pandemic era, the 
growth momentum is likely to get further acceleration in coming months. 
G) Human Resources Relationship: 
As per human resources relationship policy of the company recognizes the importance of human value 
and ensures that proper encouragement both moral and financial is extended to employees to motivate 
them and as well as we protects the right of the employee/workers and provide a comfortable 
environment to the employee/workers. The company is a paper manufacturing industry, we are 
maintaining a culture and custom for our employee to attract and retain the best talent. During the year 
under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all levels. 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
Employees of the company are essential assets of the company. Our company believes for welfare and 
development of the company. As at 31st march, 2022, the company employed 263 employees. 

RECRUITMENT 
Our company has recruitment policy and procedure. All the recruitment and vacancy filled by the 
company under this policy and procedure. The selection process based on candidate’s qualification, 
experience and interview after that eligible candidate elected for the company. As on 31st March, 2022 
263 employee on pay roll of the company, during the financial year ended 2022, 18 new employee 
joined and 22 employee left the company. 

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 
Our company’s continuous education program emphasize enhancing the relevance and effectiveness of 
learning. Under review, The Company is providing relevant training for skills and personality 
development to every employee (employee of 3rd or 4th level) of the company in every month and 
training providing to senior level employee (employee 2nd level) periodically or as per requirement and 
directors and top management’s training conducting at least one time in a year.   

COMPENSATION 
We always try to provide best competitive salaries and benefits to our employees as per our industries. 
We have also a variable compensation policy as per individual employee performance. 
As per pay roll policy of the company as on March 31, 2022 the company has 263employees/workers on 
pay roll at its Power and Paper unit. The company has provided many facilities to the staff & workers of 
the company for welfare. The company enjoyed excellent relationship with workers and staff during the 
last year. 
H) Details of significant changes: 
During the financial year 2021-2022 changes in financials and operating position of the company. 
Financial Ratio: 

Sr.no. Ratio Definition UOM 21-22 20-21 % change 

1. Debtor Turnover  Net credit Sale/Average 
Account Receivable 

Times 6.32 4.49 40.75% 

2. Inventory 
Turnover  

Sale/Avg. Inventory Times 10.37 7.89 31.43% 

3. Interest Coverage EBIT/Finance Cost Times 2.36 1.48 59.45% 
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ratio 

4. Current Ratio Current Assets/ Current 
Liabilities 

Times 1.62 1.51 7.28% 

5. Debt equity Ratio Debt/Equity % 54 55 (1.81%) 

6. Operation Profit 
Margin 

EBIT/Sale % 2.37 2.21 7.24% 

7. Net Profit Margin Net profit/Total Revenue % 1.06 0.62 71.74% 

 
The Company reported a growth of 46% approx.in its sales due to strong market condition after post 

pandemic era,both in domestic and export market.The Company reported an increase of 40.75% in 

Debtor Turnover Ratio during the financial year 2021-2022 as compared to FY 2020-2021.The Company 

reported an increase of 31.43% in Inventory Turnover Ratio during the financial year 2021-2022. The 

Company reported an increase of 59.45% in Interest Coverage Ratio during the financial year 2021-22 

due to profit before tax increased sharply with 177% and profit after tax increases with 151% (other 

than OCI).The Company reported marginal change in Current Ratio during the financial year 2021-2022. 

There is a marginal decrease of 1.81% in Debt Equity Ratio during the financial year 2021-2022.The 

Company reported a growth of 7.24% in Operating Profit Margin during the financial year 2021-22 due 

to sharp increase in both - profit before tax with 177% and profit after tax with 151% (other than OCI) 

and sale increased with 46% approx. during the year.The Company reported a growth of 66% in Net 

Profit Margin (includes other comprehensive income) during the financial year 2021-2022 due to growth 

in profit before tax with 177% and profit after tax increase with 151% (other than OCI) and total revenue 

increased with 46% approx. The upside growth in sales/revenue and profit primarily due to vaccination 

drive in the country, the covid case decline suddenly and the proactive measures in supply chain 

management in ensuring availability of trucks, loading/unloading crew, etc were put in place, which 

ensured the smoother flow of materials across the country. Also, increase in the growth of organized 

retail sector and reopening of school, offices etc. supports in rising demand of paper and paper products 

during the year. 

I) Announcement:  
The statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” section describes the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be “forward looking 
statements” within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can differ 
materially from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, 
Government policies and other incidental factors. 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
  

 

       Sd/-     Sd/- 

Date: 01/09/202221                                                                              Amit Sangal                                 HimanshuSangal 
Place: Mawana                                                                        Whole Time Director/CFO                  Managing Director 
                                                                                                               DIN- 00091486                              DIN - 00091324 
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D.  K.  GUPTA & CO. 

(Company Secretaries)                     
 

 

 

 

````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````````` 

Address:    164, Civil Lines,  Behind Baijal Bhawan, Meerut – 250002, Uttar Pradesh, India 

Ph:  + 91-121-2663066, Mob: +91-9997773884, 9557089388 

E-mail  dkgupta08@yahoo.co.in  

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members, 
SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED, 
CIN:  L21015UP1980PLC005138 
Reg. Office: Vill. Bhainsa, 22km stone Meerut-Mawana Road, Mawana, Meerut, UP- 250401 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of Sangal Papers Limited having CIN: L21015UP1980PLC005138 and having registered office at “Vill. 
Bhainsa, 22km stone, Meerut-Mawana Road, Mawana, Meerut, UP” (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company 

1. HIMANSHU SANGAL 00091324 25/11/1980 

2. AMIT SANGAL 00091486 27/09/1996 

3. TANMAY SANGAL 01297057 30/11/2003 

4. VINAYAK SANGAL 06833351 01/03/2014 

5. PREM SETHI 07146425 16/03/2015 

6. GEETA GUPTA 00095939 16/03/2015 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
for D. K. GUPTA & CO. 
(Company Secretaries) 

    

            
Place:  Meerut                 DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 
Date:   30th May 2022       (Proprietor) 

      ICSI UDIN:  F005226D000435458 dated 30th May 2022   C. P. No.   3599 
M. No.   F-5226 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To the Members of SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED 
 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED, 
MEERUT (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss including the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143 (10) of the act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the „Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements‟ section of our report. We are independent of the company in 
accordance with the „Code of Ethics‟ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained a sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone IND AS financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. During the year under consideration, we have no key audit matters to report. 
 
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon: 
 
The company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report 2021-22, but does not include the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor‟s report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS Financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements   
 
The company‟s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position, Financial Performance 
including Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the 
company‟s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those 
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company‟s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an Auditor‟s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these the standalone  Ind AS 
financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of sub controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company‟s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor‟s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify or opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor‟s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and the communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor‟s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor‟s report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 
2.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
 
a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;   
 
b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books;   
 
c.  The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;   

 
d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid the standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014, as amended; 

 
e.  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;   

 
f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

company with reference to these the standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;    

 
g.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor‟s Report under section 197(16), In our 

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Company to its directors during the current year as in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down 
under section 197 of the Act. 

 
h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‟s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
(i)  The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS 

financial statements – Refer Note 37 to the standalone Ind As financial statements;  
 
(ii)  The company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; 
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(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds which 

are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

 
  (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company 
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

 
  (c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

 
(v) The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year covered by our audit. 
 
 
 

 
          For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 
                                                    Chartered Accountants, 
          Firm Regn. No. 002011C 
 
 

 

 

         CA Raj Kumar Sharma 
Dated: 30.05.2022                                      Partner    
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR      Membership No.077650 
                                 UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
The annexure referred to in our report to the members of SANGAL PAPERS LIMITED, MEERUT 
(„the Company‟) for the year ended 31 March 2022. We report that: 
 
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of property, plant & equipment. 
  
 (b) The Company does not have any intangible asset.  
       
 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of property, 

plant & equipment have been carried out by the management and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, 
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. 

 
 (d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant & equipment during the year. 
 
 (e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of 

immovable properties are held in the name of the company.  
 
 (f)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings 

have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii) (a) The inventory except for inventories lying with third parties has been physical verified at 

reasonable intervals by the management during the year and in our opinion the coverage and 
procedure of such verification is appropriate As explained to us, no discrepancy of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification of 
stocks by the management as compared to book records. 

 
 (b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in 

aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during 
any point of time of the year. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with 
such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the company. 

 
(iii)  The Company has not made investments in, or provided any guarantee or security, or granted 

any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 
189 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

(iv)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not given any loans or guarantees/made any investments within the meaning of Section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
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(v)     In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under 
sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the 

Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014 under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost record have been made and 
maintained. We have however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

 
(vii) (a) According to the records of company and information and explanation given to us, the 

company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including, provident fund 
employees‟ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax and any 
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. There is no undisputed 
amounts payable, as at 31.03.2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 

duty of customs, goods and service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute.  

 
(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the books of account, 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, as income during the year. Accordingly the 
requirement on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

 
(ix)  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institution, banks during the 
year.  

 
 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared willful 

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the year. 
 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for 
which they were obtained. 

 
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on 

short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 
 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
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(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies.. 

 
(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company did 

not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instrument). 

 
    (b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
 
(xi) (a)  According to information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or on the 

company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 
 (b) According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 

section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

 
 (c) According to information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints had 

been received by the company during the year. 
 
(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(xii) of 

the Order is not applicable on the Company.  
 
(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with 

the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.  

 
(xiv)  (a)  According to information and explanations given to us, the company has an internal audit 

system commensurate with the  size and the nature of its business. 
 
        (b) The reports of internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by us. 
 
(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company has 

not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as 
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.  

 
(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of section 45-IA 

of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.  
 
 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 
Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. 
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 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. 

 
 (d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does 

not have any CIC as part of the Group.  
 
(xvii)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 
(xviii)  According to the information and explanations provided to us, there has been no resignation of 

the statutory auditors during the year. 
 
(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due.  

 
(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other 

than ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
said Act.  

 
(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to 

prepare Consolidate financial statement hence, the provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
 
          For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 
           Chartered Accountants, 
           Firm Regn. No. 002011C 
 
 

           CA Raj Kumar Sharma 
Dated: 30.05.2022                                      Partner    
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR      Membership No.077650 
                                UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087  
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SANGAL PAPERS 
LIMITED, MEERUT („the company‟) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone Ind As financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The company‟s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company‟s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company‟s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the 
Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
   
 
          For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 
                                                       Chartered Accountants, 
          Firm Regn. No. 002011C 
 
 

 

         CA Raj Kumar Sharma 
Dated: 30.05.2022                                      Partner    
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR      Membership No.077650 
                                UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087 
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Sangal Papers Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Notes
 As at  31 March 

2022

 As at  31 March 

2021

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 3,028.75              3,176.94              

Capital work in progress 4 11.91                   -                       

Financial assets

Other financial assets 5 15.38                   15.38                   

Other non-current assets 6 156.42                 13.17                   

3,212.46              3,205.49              

Current assets

Inventories 7 1,653.69              1,336.02              

Trade receivables 8 2,460.01              2,443.35              

Cash and cash equivalents 9 14.24                   14.25                   

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 -                       8.58                     

Current tax assets (net) 11 17.52                   17.52                   

Other current assets 12 72.86                   78.67                   

Total current assets 4,218.32              3,898.39              

7,430.78              7,103.88              

Equity share capital 13 130.73                 130.73                 

Other equity 14 3,448.05              3,284.70              

3,578.78              3,415.43              

Borrowings 15 850.71                 728.90                 

Provisions 16 64.97                   57.88                   

17 336.38                 326.22                 

1,252.06              1,113.00              
 

Borrowings 18 1,066.11              1,145.49              

Trade payables 19

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 66.67                   66.47                   

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,229.60              1,141.59              

Other current financial liabilities 20 100.00                 107.67                 

21 95.45                   73.72                   

Provisions 22 36.32                   30.99                   

Current tax liability (net) 23 5.79                     9.52                     

2,599.94              2,575.45              

3,852.00              3,688.45              

7,430.78              7,103.88              

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2 -                       0.00                     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Sangal Papers Limited

For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002011C

Chartered Accountants

Managing  Director  Director

(Himanshu Sangal) (Tanmay Sangal)

CA Raj Kumar Sharma DIN- 00091324 DIN- 01297057

Partner

Membership No.: 077650

Place: Muzaffarnagar Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 30.05.2022 (Amit Sangal) (Arpit Jain)

UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087 DIN: 00091486 PAN : ASQPJ9366A

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Equity

Total non-current assets

Financial assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Total equity

Financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Other current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes
 For the year ended 

 31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

24 15,499.76                  10,591.66                  

25 64.72                         46.73                         

15,564.48                  10,638.39                  

26 13,475.44                  8,658.62                    

27 12.16                         6.55                           

28 (36.47)                       208.46                       

29 779.14                       728.06                       

3 143.25                       136.39                       

Finance costs 30 154.80                       157.74                       

31 824.33                       666.08                       

15,352.65                  10,561.90                  

211.83                       76.49                         

Exceptional items -                            -                            

211.83                       76.49                         

Current tax 37.28                         13.12                         

Less: MAT credit entitlement (1.87)                         (11.93)                       

Deferred tax 12.30                         10.00                         

164.12                       65.30                         

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan (1.04)                         44.32                         

Income tax effect 0.27                           (11.52)                       

Other comprehensive income (0.77)                         32.80                         

Total comprehensive income 163.35                       98.10                         

Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 10 each :

Basic (in `) 12.56                         5.00                           

Diluted (in `) 12.56                         5.00                           

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002011C Managing  Director  Director

Chartered Accountants (Himanshu Sangal) (Tanmay Sangal)

DIN- 00091324 DIN- 01297057

CA Raj Kumar Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 077650 Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(Amit Sangal) (Arpit Jain)

Place: Muzaffarnagar DIN: 00091486 PAN : ASQPJ9366A

Date: 30.05.2022

UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087

Purchase of traded goods

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-

process and stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Depreciation 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 

Sangal Papers Limited

Profit for the period

Income:

Tax expense

Profit before tax

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Expenses:

Cost of material consumed
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Sangal Papers Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital (Refer Note 13)

(1) Current reporting period

                                                                         130.73                    -              130.73                    -              130.73 

(2) Previous reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 

period

Changes in 

equity share 

capital due to 

prior period 

errors

Restated 

balance at 

the beginning 

of the current 

reporting 

period

Changes in 

equity share 

capital 

during the 

current year

Balance at 

the end of the 

current 

reporting 

period

                                                                         130.73                    -              130.73                    -              130.73 

B Other equity (Refer Note 14)

Particulars

  As at  31   As at  31   As at  31   As at  31   As at  31   As at  31 

 March 2022  March 2021  March 2022  March 2021  March 2022  March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 48.56            48.56            3,236.14       3,138.04       3,284.70       3,186.60       

Profit/(loss) for the year -                -                164.12          65.30            164.12          65.30            

Other comprehensive income -                -                (0.77)             32.80            (0.77)             32.80            

Total Comprehensive Income -                -                163.35          98.10            163.35          98.10            

Balance at the end of the reporting period 48.56            48.56            3,399.49       3,236.14       3,448.05       3,284.70       

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For RAJ VIYOM & CO., 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002011C Managing  Director  Director

Chartered Accountants (Himanshu Sangal) (Tanmay Sangal)

DIN- 00091324 DIN- 01297057

CA Raj Kumar Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 077650

Place: Muzaffarnagar Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 30.05.2022 (Amit Sangal) (Arpit Jain)

UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087 DIN: 00091486 PAN : ASQPJ9366A

Total other equity

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 

period

Changes in 

equity share 

capital due to 

prior period 

errors

Restated 

balance at 

the beginning 

of the current 

reporting 

period

Changes in 

equity share 

capital 

during the 

current year

Balance at 

the end of the 

current 

reporting 

period

Retained earnings

(refer note 14.2)

Reserve & surplus

(refer note 14.1)

 Revaluation reserve 
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Sangal Papers Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amounts in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

 For the year   For the year 

 ended   ended  

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Profit before tax                      211.83 76.49                       

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation                      143.25 136.39                     

Interest expenses                      154.80 157.74                     

Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment                              -   (0.54)                        

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment                          0.71 -                           

Interest income                        (0.13) (1.48)                        

Operating profit before working capital changes                      510.46                       368.60 

Movement in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables                      (16.66)                     (170.68)

(Increase)/decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents                          8.58                         (8.58)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories                    (317.67)                         12.04 

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets                          5.81                         68.47 

(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets                    (143.25)                         49.91 

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables                        88.21                       320.52 

Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities                        (7.67)                       (21.08)

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities                        21.73                         18.88 

Increase/(decrease) in current tax liability                        (3.73)                           9.52 

Increase/(decrease) in long term provisions                          5.72                         20.28 

Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions                          5.33                           4.49 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations                      156.86                       672.37 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)                      (35.41)                         (1.19)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities                                                                                               121.45                       671.18 

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of  property, plant & equipment including capital work in progress                    (101.75)                     (349.12)

Proceeds from disposal of assets                        94.07                           0.90 

Interest received                          0.13                           1.48 

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities                                                                                                 (7.55)                     (346.74)

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings                      121.81                       103.80 

Proceeds from short-term borrowings                      (79.38)                     (269.38)

Interest paid                    (156.34)                     (170.84)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities                                                                                             (113.91)                     (336.42)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                     (0.01)                       (11.98)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                        14.25                         26.23 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                        14.24                         14.25 

14.24                      14.25                       
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cheques on hand 3.62                        7.25                         

Balances with banks:

 - On current accounts                        10.62 7.00                         

  (refer note 9)                        14.24                         14.25 

Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

As per our report of even date

For RAJ VIYOM & CO., Managing  Director  Director

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002011C (Himanshu Sangal) (Tanmay Sangal)

Chartered Accountants DIN- 00091324 DIN- 01297057

CA Raj Kumar Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 077650 Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(Amit Sangal) (Arpit Jain)

Place: Muzaffarnagar DIN: 00091486 PAN : ASQPJ9366A

Date: 30.05.2022

UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087
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Sangal Papers Limited

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Background

Note 1: Significant Accounnting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

(ii)

The financial statement have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

- defined benefit plans and their liabilites are measured at fair value.

(b) Use of Estimates

(c) Segment Reporting

(d)

(e)

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and

liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. The

difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are known/materialize.

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set

out in the schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for

processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the

purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Transactions in foreign currencies arc initially recorded by the company's entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the

date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arc translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the

reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates

of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the

date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in

line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value

gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

Financial instruments - Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

The Company is engaged in the business of Paper Manufacturing considering the nature of company's business and operations, there are

no other reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 ' Operating segments' and hence, there are no additional disclosures

required.

Sangal Papers Limited is a Company domiciled in India, incorporated on 22 November 1980 with its registered office situated at Village

Bhainsa, 22 km Mawana Road Meerut U.P, the Company has been incorporated under Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are

listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). "The financial statements are approved for issuance by the comapny's board of directors on

30th May 2022"

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and as amended from time to time and other

relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical Cost Convention

A financial instrument is any contract that gives use to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.
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Sangal Papers Limited

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Assets

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial Liabilities

De-recognition of financial liability

Offsetting financial instruments

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to

one or more recipients.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss

depending on its business model for managing those financial assets and the assets contractual cash flow characteristics.

Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial categorisation. For impairment purposes significant financial assets

are tested on an individual basis, other financial assets are assessed collectively that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,

the financial asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the

financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than fair valued through profit and loss are recognised initially at fair value less 

transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at fair value through 

profit or loss is expensed in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has not designated any

financial liabilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are at each reporting date at fair value with all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

rate method ('EIR') except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship. The carrying value of borrowings that are designated

as hedged items in fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record changes in fair values

attributable to the risks that are hedged in effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the year of

the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of

the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting year.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between

the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including

any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to 

offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to other income.
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(f) Trade and other payables

(g) Cash Flow statements

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(i)

(j) Revenue recognition

Interest income

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of  paper products.

Sale of goods

For sale of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred at a point in time i.e. when the goods have been

dispatched to the location of customer. Following dispatch, the customer has full discretion over the responsibility, manner of

distribution, price to sell the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the

Company when the goods are dispatched to the customer as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes

unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due.The Company considers the effects of variable consideration,

non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Interest income from financial instrument is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate which exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial

asset. When calculating the EIR the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial

instrument (for example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar options)  but does not consider the expected credit losses.

A payable is classified as 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in the

normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of

financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months

after the reporting year. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in

exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it

is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated

uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated amount of

variable consideration in the period in which the change occurs. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with volume

rebates and pricing incentives, which give rise to variable consideration.

Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the

Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the

amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then

applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future

rebates.

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method, where by profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing

activities of the company are segregate based on the available information.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The Company considers all highly liquid

investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts

of cash to be cash equivalents.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Par value of the equity share is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of the par value is classified as share

premium.
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(k)

(l) Earning Per Share

(m) Taxation

(i) Current Income Tax

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required

before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policy (n).

Contract liabilities (which the Company refer to as advance from customer)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an

amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to

the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities

are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Provisions, contingent liabilites and assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the

present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a

reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of an economic benefit is probable.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the

customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices

for the time value of money.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cost to obtain a contract

The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the Company. The Company has elected to

apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions

(included in 'commission on sales' under other expenses) because the amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would

have used is one year or less.

Financing components

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period in India Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax

regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other selling expenses are recognized as an expense in the period in which related

revenue is recognised.

Provision for tax consists of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax provision is computed for current income based on the tax liability

after considering allowances and exemptions. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed on the basis of timing differences at the

Balance Sheet date between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets are recognized

based on management estimates of available future taxable income and assessing its certainty.
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(ii) Deferred Tax 

(iii) GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are reconised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

(n) Trade Receivables 

(o) Inventories 

(p) Property, plant and equipment

Building 40-60 years

Plant & Machinery 25-40 years

Furniture, fixture & Office 

Equipment 5 years

Computer 3 years

Vehicle 8 years

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Trade Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance

sheet.

The above cost of the assets includes the revaluation of assets carried out in the previous years' and the accumulated amount of

revaluation forms part of the Other Equity in Shareholders' Funds with name of "Revaluation Reserve"

Useful life of assets are as follows:

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw

materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in- progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct

labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal

operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average / first-in first-out basis. Costs of purchased

inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful

lives or, in the case of certain leased furniture, fittings and equipment, the shorter lease term 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The

carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance

are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable

profits and accounting profits for the period. 

Ind AS 12, "Income Taxes" requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary

differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12, has

resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences, which was not required under Indian GAAP, if applicable.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to additional temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the

Company has to account for such differences. Tax impact on Deferred tax adjustments are recognized in reserves for opening balance

sheet and statement of profit and loss in subsequent years.

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is

recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as part of the expenses item, as applicable
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(q)    Borrowings

(r)    BorrowingsBorrowing costs

(s)    Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Post-employment obligations

The group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plan viz. gratuity; and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

(a) Defined benefit plan

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end

of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the

reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as

current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Borrowings are de-recogized in the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The

difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the

consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

The useful lives have been determined as per those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013. The residual values are not

more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with

carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting period. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the present value of the

defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated

annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are

capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are

assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible

for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows

by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the

related obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields

determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that

have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as

transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is

deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn

down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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(b) Defined contribution plans

(iii) Leave encashment

(t) Impact of COVID 19 

(u) Rounding of amounts

Recent accounting developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities – Note 17

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of 

plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.

Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation – Note 33

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely

to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information

about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for

each affected line item in the financial statements.

Estimation of current tax expense and payable – Note 23

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period

in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity

and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments

are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The group has no further

payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the

contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule

III, unless otherwise stated.

The company has evaluated the impact of Corona Virus (COVID-19) on the operations and future economic activity of the company and

based on its review and current indicators and future economic prospectus, there is no significant impact on the business of the company

on its operations.

Entitlement of annual leave is recognised when they accrue to employees. Anuual leave can either be availed or encashed subject to a 

restriction on the maximum number of accumulation of leaves.

Note 2: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The company makes estimates and judgments that affect the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year. Estimates

and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factor, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance.
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Ind AS 103 - Business Combination 

Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

Ind AS 106 - Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

The amendments specify that the 'Cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate

directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an

allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarifiaction and the comapny does not

expect the amendmnet to have any signifiacnt impact in its financial statements.

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity injcludes when it applies the '10 percent' test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to

derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any signifiacnt impact in its financial statements.

The amendments remove the illustartion of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential

confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.

The Comapny does not expect the amendment to have any signifiacnt impact in its financial statements.

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilites in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian

Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by he Intitute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These

changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant & equipment amounts received from selling

items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and

related cost in profit or loss.

The company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant & equipment in its financial

statements.
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3 Property, plant & equipment

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2021 254.44         641.09      106.57       3,609.18      1,136.50          29.20                   6.44              216.29      5,999.71        

Additions during the year 18.98           -           -             11.41           9.66                 0.46                     1.56              47.77        89.84             

Deletions during the year 18.20           -           45.40         -               -                  -                       0.38              53.74        117.72           

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2022 255.22         641.09      61.17         3,620.59      1,146.16          29.66                   7.62              210.32      5,971.83        

Accumulated Depreciation as of March 31, 2021 -               285.37      7.49           1,957.60      476.03             22.49                   5.46              68.33        2,822.77        

Depreciation -               16.37        1.79           77.56           21.54               2.06                     0.55              23.38        143.25           

Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -               -           2.90           -               -                  -                       0.36              19.68        22.94             

Accumulated Depreciation as of March 31, 2022 -               301.74      6.38           2,035.16      497.57             24.55                   5.65              72.03        2,943.08        

Carrying value as of March 31, 2022 255.22         339.35      54.79         1,585.43      648.59             5.11                     1.97              138.29      3,028.75        

Carrying value as of March 31, 2021 254.44         355.72      99.08         1,651.58      660.47             6.71                     0.98              147.96      3,176.94        

 Land & Site 

development 

Buildings  Buildings 

others 

 Plant & 

machinery 

 Co-generation 

system  

 Office furniture 

& equipment 

Computer Vehicles Total

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2020 254.44         641.09      106.57       3,324.10      1,083.32          28.20                   6.44              214.04      5,658.20        

Additions during the year -               -           -             285.08         53.19               1.40                     -                9.45          349.12           

Deletions during the year -               -           -             -               -                  0.40                     -                7.20          7.60               

Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2021 254.44         641.09      106.57       3,609.18      1,136.51          29.20                   6.44              216.29      5,999.72        

Accumulated Depreciation as of March 31, 2020 -               268.92      5.54           1,886.92      455.11             20.71                   4.85              51.56        2,693.61        

Depreciation -               16.45        1.95           70.68           20.93               2.16                     0.61              23.61        136.39           

Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -               -           -             -               -                  0.38                     -                6.84          7.22               

Accumulated Depreciation as of March 31, 2021 -               285.37      7.49           1,957.60      476.04             22.49                   5.46              68.33        2,822.78        

Carrying value as of March 31, 2021 254.44         355.72      99.08         1,651.58      660.47             6.71                     0.98              147.96      3,176.94        

Carrying value as of March 31, 2020 254.44         372.17      101.03       1,437.18      628.21             7.49                     1.59              162.48      2,964.59        

Note:

2 Term loans from SBI are secured by way of equitable mortgage of land & building and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and personal guarantee by Directors of the Company.- Refer Note-15

 Buildings 

others 

 Buildings  Plant & 

machinery 

 Total  Land & Site 

development 

 Co-generation 

system  

 Office furniture 

& equipment 

 Computer  Vehicles 
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4 Capital work in progress

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Capital work in progress 11.91                 -                  

Total                  11.91                      -   

Less than 1 More than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  3 years 

Project in progress          11.91               -                 -                          -                  11.91 

Project Temporarily Suspended               -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

Total          11.91               -                 -                          -                  11.91 

Less than 1 More than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  3 years 

Project in progress               -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

Project Temporarily Suspended               -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

Total               -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

5 Non Current Other Finanical assets

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposit 15.38                 15.38              

Total                  15.38                15.38 

Other non-current assets6 Other non current assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Prepaid expenses 15.64                 -                  

Capital AdvanceCapital advance 127.61               -                  

Balances with government authorities 13.17                 13.17              

Total                156.42                13.17 

7 Inventories

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Raw materials 745.83               575.72            

Raw material in transit 4.71                   -                  

Work-in-process 11.61                 15.61              

Semi finished goods 74.66                 113.07            

Finished goods 312.89               233.78            

Traded goods -                    0.22                

Stores and spare parts 258.66               244.19            

Store in transit 4.38                   -                  

Others* 234.05               153.43            

Other in transit 6.90                   -                  
1,653.69            1,336.02         

*Others include chemicals, packing material & fuel

  As at  31 

March 2022 Particualrs

Particualrs

  As at  31 

March 2021 

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Amount in CWIP for a period of

100

mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2
mailto:+@ROUND(+'[BS_31.03.2020.xls]MAIN%20BS'!$F$141/100000,2


Sangal Papers Limited

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Trade receivables

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Current

 Unsecured

(i) Undisputed - considered good 2,230.40            2,333.54         

(ii) Undisputed - which have significant increase in credit risk 188.31               -                  

(iii) Undisputed - credit impaired -                    -                  

(i) Disputed - considered good -                    -                  

(ii) Disputed - which have significant increase in credit risk 41.30                 109.81            

(iii) Disputed - credit impaired -                    -                  

Total 2,460.01            2,443.35         

Note: 8A

Particulars

Not due Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed - 

considered good

              -       2,164.84          44.09          17.61            3.86                        -             2,230.40 

(ii) Undisputed - which 

have significant increase 

in credit risk

              -                 -                 -            14.07          48.88                125.36              188.31 

(iii) Undisputed - credit 

impaired

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

(i) Disputed - considered 

good

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

(ii) Disputed - which have 

significant increase in 

credit risk

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    41.30                41.30 

(iii) Disputed - credit 

impaired

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

Note: 8B

Particulars

Not due Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

6 months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed - 

considered good

              -       2,019.15          40.99        144.48        123.13                    5.79           2,333.54 

(ii) Undisputed - which 

have significant increase 

in credit risk

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

(iii) Undisputed - credit 

impaired

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

(i) Disputed - considered 

good

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

(ii) Disputed - which have 

significant increase in 

credit risk

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                  109.81              109.81 

(iii) Disputed - credit 

impaired

              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                          -                        -   

31.03.2022

31.03.2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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9 Cash and cash equivalents

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Cash on hand 2.89                   5.86                

Cheques on hand 0.73                   1.39                

Balance with bank 10.62                 7.00                

14.24                 14.25              

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Fixed deposit -                    8.58                

-                    8.58                

11 Current tax assets (net)

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

Income tax refund receivable 17.52                 17.52              

17.52                 17.52              

12 Other current assets

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Prepaid expenses 13.59                 12.45              

Advances to suppliers 33.52                 40.94              

Balances with government authorities 0.29                   0.24                

Others 25.46                 25.04              

Total 72.86                 78.67              
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13 Share capital

Authorised share capital

Number of shares

(lakhs)
Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each

As at 31 March 2021 70.00                     700.00               

Increase during the year -                        -                     

As at 31 March 2022 70.00                     700.00               

13A Issued share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number of shares

(lakhs)
Amount

As at 31 March 2021 13.07                     130.73               

Shares issued during the year -                        -                     

As at 31 March 2022 13.07                     130.73               

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

13 B Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

 Number

(lakhs) 

% Holding Number % Holding

Equity shares of  INR 10 each

Shri Himanshu Sangal 1.08                       8.26% 1.08                       8.26%

Shri Amit Sangal 1.21                       9.26% 1.21                       9.26%

Smt. Charu Sangal 0.94                       7.19% 0.94                       7.19%

Smt. Renu Sangal 1.13                       8.65% 1.13                       8.65%

13 C Details of shareholding of Promoters

 Number

(lakhs) 

% Holding  Number

(lakhs) 

% Holding

Equity shares of  INR 10 each

Shri Himanshu Sangal 1.08         8.26% 1.08                       8.26% -                     

Shri Amit Sangal 1.21         9.27% 1.21                       9.26% -                     

Shri Tanmay Sangal 0.46         3.50% 0.46                       3.49% 0.01%

Shri Vinayak Sangal 0.14         1.11% 0.14                       1.11% -                     

14 Other equity 

14.1 Revaluation reserve

As at 31 March 2021 48.56                     48.56                 

Addition/Reduction during the year -                        -                     

As at 31 March 2022 (a) 48.56                     48.56                 

14.2 Retained earnings

Statement of profit & loss

As at 31 March 2021 3,236.14                3,138.04            

Profit for the year 163.35                   98.10                 

As at 31 March 2022 (b) 3,399.49                3,236.14            

(a+b) 3,448.05                3,284.70            

 As at  31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No shares have been issued by the Company for consideration other than cash, during the period of five years immediately preceding the

reporting date.

 As at  31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
 % Change 

during the year 
Name of the shareholder

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote

per share. The Company will declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial

ownerships of shares.
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15 Non-current financail liabilities

Borrowings

  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

(Secured)

Term loans from banks 323.47                  267.56               

Vehicle loans from NBFC 23.94                    24.52                 

(a) 347.41                  292.08               

(Unsecured)

From directors 159.66                  107.42               

From director's relative 52.32                    52.20                 

From bodies corporate 291.32                  277.20               

(b) 503.30                  436.82               

Total (a+b) 850.71                  728.90               

Notes:

Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings:

Term loan from Banks

Security:

Other information; 

Vehicle Loan

Security:

16 Provisions
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 33) 64.97                    57.88                 

Total 64.97                    57.88                 

Term loans from SBI are secured by way of equitable mortgage of land & building and hypothecation of plant & machinery

and personal guarantee by directors of the company. Following are the details of loans.

At the Present effective rate is 9.55% p.a., repayable in first EMI of Rs. 0.25 lacs, 34 monthly EMI of 0.32 lacs each and last 

installment for 23.46 lacs starting from March 2022.

From State Bank of India (Original loan Amount 294 lacs)

Vehicle Loan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles and guaranteed by Directors of the Company.

From BMW India Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. (Original Loan Amount 28 lacs)

From Toyota Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. (Original loan Amount 25 lacs)

From State Bank of India (Original loan Amount 300 lacs)

From State Bank of India (Original loan Amount 150 lacs)

At the Present effective rate is 9.00% p.a. (Previous year 9.00% p.a.), repayable in 36 monthly EMI of 0.79 lacs each starting 

from November 2019.

At the rate of 1.00% above MCLR rate. i.e. 7.65% p.a. (Previous year 1.00% above MCLR rate i.e. 7.95% p.a.), repayable in

60 monthly installments of 4.90 lacs each  starting from February 2019.

At the rate of 0.75% above EBLR rate. (Presently 6.65% p.a.) i.e. 7.40% p.a. (Previous year 0.75% above EBLR rate. i.e.

7.40% p.a.), repayable in 37 monthly installments of 8.33 lacs each starting from September 2021.

At the rate of 0.75% above EBLR rate. (Presently 6.65% p.a.) i.e. 7.40% p.a., repayable in 36 monthly installments of 4.17 lacs

each starting from February 2024.
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17 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

(a) 435.19                  429.63                 

Deferred Tax Assets

(b) 11.88                    18.35                   

MAT Credit Entitlement

MAT credit entitlement ( c ) (86.93)                   (85.06)                 

Total (a-b+c) 336.38                  326.22                 

Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Statement of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section

  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 37.28 13.12

Less: Mat credit entitlement (1.87)                     (11.93)                 

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 12.30 10.00

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 47.71 11.19

OCI section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.27                      (11.52)                 

Income tax charged to OCI 0.27                      (11.52)                 

  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Accounting profit before tax 211.83                  76.49                   

Non deductible income for tax purposes:

Less: Profit from power unit -                        318.23                 

Less: Long term capital gain 8.79                      -                      

Less: Unabsorbed depreciation 88.05                    -                      

Taxable Profit 114.99                  (241.74)               

At India's statutory income tax rate of 16.692%  ( previous year 35.36                    11.93                   

statutory income tax of 15.60%)

 MAT credit entitlement (1.87)                     (11.93)                 

Income tax expenses 1.92                      1.19                     

Deferred tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss* 12.30                    10.00                   

At the effective income tax rate 47.71                    11.19                   

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 37.28                    13.12                   
Deferred tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss 12.30                    10.00                   

Less: MAT credit entitlement (1.87)                     (11.93)                 

47.71                    11.19                   

Property, plant & equipment: Impact of differences

between tax depreciation charged as per Financial 

Impact of gratuity expenditure charged to the

statement of profit & loss in current year but allowed

for tax purposes on payment basis
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18 Borrowings
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Secured

Working capital loan from bank* 970.96                  982.95                 

Current maturities of long term debt 95.15                    162.54                 

Total 1,066.11               1,145.49              

19 Trade payables
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Trade payable

(i) MSME 66.67                    66.47                   

(ii) Others 1,229.60               1,141.59              

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -                        -                      

(iv) Disputed dues-Others -                        -                      

Total 1,296.27               1,208.06              

Note : 19A

Not due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

 More than 3 

years 
31.03.2022

(i) MSME                -            66.67                -                           -                             -   66.67                   

(ii) Others                -       1,171.25          20.19                     9.77                      28.39 1,229.60              

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME                -                  -                  -                           -                             -   -                      

(iv) Disputed dues-Others                -                  -                  -                           -                             -   -                      

Note : 19B

Not due
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

 More than 3 

years 
31.03.2022

(i) MSME                -            66.47                -                           -                             -   66.47                   

(ii) Others                -       1,085.79          27.41                   13.89                      14.50 1,141.59              

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME                -                  -                  -                           -                             -   -                      

(iv) Disputed dues-Others                -                  -                  -                           -                             -   -                      

20 Other current financial liabilities
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Salaries & wages payable 78.90                    89.45                   

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.14                      2.68                     

Cheque payable 0.35                      0.94                     

Other payable 19.61                    14.60                   

Total 100.00                  107.67                 

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of the payment

*The above loan is secured by primarily through a hypothecation on present & future stock and receivables of the company and

certain immovable property such as factory land & building at Village Bhainsa, Pargana Hastinapur, Tehsil Mawana Distt.

Meerut as a collateral.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of the payment
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21 Other current liabilities
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Advance from customers 39.57                    13.21                   

Statutory dues (including provident fund, esi,gst  and   55.88                    60.51                   

tax dedcuted at source and tax collected at source)

Total 95.45                    73.72                   

22 Provisions
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 33) 36.32                    30.99                   

Total 36.32                    30.99                   

23 Current tax liability (net)
  As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Income tax 5.79                      9.52                     

Total 5.79                      9.52                     
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24 Revenue from operations

Particulars

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Sale of products 15,462.49               10,556.75                

Other operating revenue

Sale of scrap 35.26                       32.65                       

Sale of other items 2.01                         2.26                         

Total 15,499.76               10,591.66                

A. Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

(i) Based on Type of products sold

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Sale of manufactured products 15,462.49               10,556.75                

Sale of scrap 35.26                       32.65                       

Sale of others 2.01                         2.26                         

Total 15,499.76               10,591.66                

(ii) Based on Geography

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Domestic 13,814.16               9,621.18                  

Export 1,685.60                 970.48                     

Total 15,499.76               10,591.66                

B. Contract balances

Particulars   As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Trade receivables (Refer Note No. 8) 2,460.01                 2,443.35                  

Contract liabilities

Advances from customers (Refer Note no 21) 39.57                       13.21                       

C.

Particulars  For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Revenue as per contracted price 15,499.76               10,591.66                

Total 15,499.76               10,591.66                

D.

Particulars   As at  31 March 

2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Advances from customers (Refer Note no 21) 39.57                       13.21                       

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at year end are, as 

Management expects that the entire transaction price allotted to the unsatisfied contract as at the end of the reporting period will be recognised as

revenue during the next financial year.
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25 Other income

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Interest income 0.13                         1.48                         

Duty draw back 21.48                       9.68                         

MEIS sale 4.06                         23.83                       

Mill board rent 4.80                         4.80                         

Unclaimed balance written back 8.27                         2.11                         

Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment -                          0.54                         

Net gain of foreign exchange transactions 25.98                       3.99                         

Miscellaneous income -                          0.30                         

Total 64.72                       46.73                       

26 Cost of raw material and components consumed 

   

Cost of raw materials (Waste Paper) 9,198.20                 5,428.64                  

Other components consumed

Chemicals 1,015.52                 942.18                     

Packing material 206.12                     153.95                     

Stores & spares 457.53                     342.62                     

Power & fuel 2,541.74                 1,738.81                  

Repairs - plant & machinery 56.33                       52.42                       

Total 13,475.44               8,658.62                  

27 Purchase of traded goods

Purchase 12.16                       6.55                         

Total 12.16                       6.55                         

28 (Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, 

work-in-process and traded goods

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Opening stock

Work in process 15.61                       15.03                       

Semi finished goods 113.07                     65.33                       

Finished goods 233.78                     484.96                     

Traded goods 0.23                         5.83                         

Total (a) 362.69                     571.15                     

Closing stock

Work in process 11.61                       15.61                       

Semi finished goods 74.66                       113.07                     

Finished goods 312.89                     233.78                     

Traded goods -                          0.23                         

Total (b) 399.16                     362.69                     

Total (a) - (b) (36.47)                     208.46                     

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
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29 Employee benefit expenses

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Salaries, wages and incentives 723.21                     672.76                     

Contribution to provident and other funds 33.72                       25.65                       

Gratuity expenses 16.35                       24.69                       

Staff welfare expenses 5.86                         4.96                         

Total 779.14                     728.06                     

30 Finance costs  For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Interest expense on:

    - term loans 30.23                       34.58                       

    - bank borrowings & others 88.54                       82.98                       

    - unsecured borrowings 36.03                       40.18                       

Total 154.80                     157.74                     

Less: Amount included in capital work in progress -                          -                           

154.80                     157.74                     

31 Other expenses

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Printing & stationery 2.57                         2.48                         

Communication expenses 8.02                         8.01                         

Travelling & conveyance 8.10                         7.09                         

Insurance charges 28.28                       22.34                       

Legal & professional charges 21.48                       16.99                       

Bank charges 9.48                         6.38                         

Rent 6.22                         6.12                         

Rates & taxes 12.21                       23.34                       

Repair to building 38.20                       33.94                       

Payment to auditors 1.50                         1.50                         

Vehicle running & maintenance 22.73                       16.53                       

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.71                         -                           

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note below) 8.71                         -                           

 Fine & penalty 1.02                         -                           

Miscellaneous expenses 15.02                       14.65                       

Advertisement 2.92                         3.75                         

Bad debts 73.37                       127.26                     

Business promotion expenses 1.73                         2.07                         

Rebate & discount 2.36                         17.80                       

Freight outward & loading charges 460.87                     294.13                     

Commission on sales 98.83                       61.70                       

Total 824.33                     666.08                     

Detail of Payment to Auditors

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

As auditor:

Audit fee 1.15                         1.15                         

Tax audit fee 0.35                         0.35                         

Total 1.50                         1.50                         
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Corporate Social Responsibilities

F.Y F.Y

2021-22 2020-21

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year -                          8.58                         

Amount of expenditure incurred on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -                          -                           

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 8.71                         -                           

Shortfall at the end of the year -                          8.58                         

Total of previous years shortfall (8.58)                       -                           

Reason for shortfall -                          

 Amount was 

deposited into bank 

Nature of CSR activities

(i)    Education                              -   -                           

(ii)   Health care                              -   -                           

(iii)  Animal welfare                              -   -                           

(iv)  Prime Minister National Relief Fund                              -   -                           

(v)   UP Covid Care Fund                              -   -                           

(vi)  Setting up orphans house for women                              -   -                           

(vii) Clean Ganga Fund                          8.71 -                           

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution 

to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR 

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard -                          -                           

Total 8.71                         -                           

Note : The provisions of section 135 is not applicable as the average profit is below ₹ 5.00 Crore in the F.Y. 2021-22.

32 Earnings per share (EPS)

 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic EPS 164.12                     65.30                       

Weighted average number of equity shares for

calculating basic EPS                        13.07                         13.07 

Basic earnings/(loss) per share                        12.56                           5.00 

Net profit/(loss) for calculation of diluted EPS 164.12                     65.30                       

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS                        13.07                         13.07 

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 12.56                       5.00                         

No. of shares No. of shares

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 13.07                       13.07                       

Effect of dilution -                          -                           

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 13.07                       13.07                       

The following reflects the profit and loss share data used for the basic and diluted EPS 

computations:

The Gross amount required to be spent by the Company under it’s Corporate Social Responsibility Obligation of Rs. NIL (2% of the average net 

profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years) for the F.Y 2021-22. 

The company has spent Rs. 8.71 lakhs in F.Y. 2021-22  (During the F.Y. 2020-21 the company has spent no amount towards social 

development activities in accordance with the Schedule VII, of the Companies Act, 2013 so the company had deposited the amount Rs. 8.58 

lakhs into bank account )  The details are as under:
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33 Employee benefit obligations

a)  Defined contribution plan

Particulars  2021-22  2020-21 

Contribution to provident and other fund 33.72           25.65                

Total 33.72           25.65                

b)  Defined benefit plan

Other disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standards 19 “Employee benefits” are given below: 

Statement of profit and Loss

Net employees benefit expense recognised in employee cost 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

Current service cost 11.29           18.33                

Interest cost on benefit obligation 5.06             6.36                  

Net benefit expense recognised in profit & loss 16.35           24.69                

Balance sheet 

Benefit asset/(liability)

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Present value of unfunded obligation (101.29)        (88.87)               

Fair value of plan assets -               -                    

Net liability (101.29)        (88.87)               

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

Opening defined benefit obligaion 88.87           109.62              

Current service cost 11.30           18.34                

Interest cost 5.06             6.36                  

Benefit paid (4.98)            (1.11)                 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation 1.05             (44.32)               

Closing defined benefit obligation 101.29         88.87                

Gratuity is payable to eligible employees as per the Company’s policy and The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The present value of

obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, which recognizes each period of

service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized 

immediately in the Other Comprehensive income as income or expense.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to

the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution 

Liability with respect to the gratuity is determined based on an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the year end and is 

charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year: (Refer Note- 29)

Provision for leave benefits is made by the Company on the basis of actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.
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Closing defined benefit obligation

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

Discount rate 7.30% 6.90%

Salary escalation 2.50% 2.50%

Rate of employee turnover 0.00% 0.00%

Retirement age 58  Years

Mortality table

Average withdrawal rate Withdrawl Rate Withdrawl Rate

a) Upto 30 Years 2.00% 2.00%

b) From 31 to 44 Years 2.00% 2.00%

c) Above 44 Years 2.00% 2.00%

Particulars Change in assumptions

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

Defined benefit obligation based on current assumptions 88.87           88.87                

Discount rate +0.50% 2.89             0.83                  

-0.50% (3.10)            (4.84)                 

Salary escalation +0.50% (2.88)            (4.66)                 

-0.50% 2.71             0.69                  

Employee Turnover +0% -               -                    

-0% -               -                    

Projected plan cash flows:

Maturity Profile

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

Within next 12 months 36.32           30.99                

Between 2 and 5 years 27.30           23.12                

Between 5 and 10 years 30.40           28.92                

Beyond 10 years -               -                    

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service

of the employees as at the valuation date

100% of IALM (2012-14)

Since the entire amount of plan obligation is unfunded therefore changes in fair value of plan assets, categories of plan assets as a

percentage of the fair value of total plan assets and Company's expected contribution to the plan assets for the next year as not given.

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a

result of resonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

The estimates of future salary considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, total amount of inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The Company regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards. The impact of

sensitivity due to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benfit obligation is given in the table below.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely

that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the

projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit

obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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Risk analysis

Inflation risk

Salary growth risk

34 Financial instruments-fair values and accounting classification

Financial Assets Amortised 

Cost 

FVTPL Amortised 

Cost 

FVTPL

Trade receivables 2,460.01     -                2,443.35      -                    

Cash and cash equivalents 14.24          -                14.25           -                    

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents -              -                8.58             -                    

Other financial assets

Security deposits 15.38          -                15.38           -                    

Total 2,489.63     -                2,481.56      -                    

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings-non current

Term loans (Secured) 323.47        -                267.56         -                    

Vehicle loans from NBFC (Secured) 23.94          -                24.52           -                    

Loans from directors (Unsecured) 159.66        -                107.42         -                    

Loans from directors relative (Unsecured) 52.32          -                52.20           -                    

Loans from bodies corporate (Unsecured) 291.32        -                277.20         -                    

Borrowings-current

Working capital loan from bank 970.96        -                982.95         -                    

Current maturities of long term debt 95.15          -                162.54         -                    

Trade payables 1,296.27     -                1,208.06      -                    

Other financial liabilities

Salaries & wages payable 78.90          -                89.45           -                    

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1.14            -                2.68             -                    

Cheque payable 0.35            -                0.94             -                    

Other payable 19.61          -                14.60           -                    

Total 3,313.09     -                3,190.12      -                    

Financial Instruments-Fair value hierarchy 

i) Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Set out below, are the fair values of the financial instruments of the Company, including their accounting classification;

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Longevity risk/life expectancy

Currently the Company has not funded the defined benefit plans. Therefore, the Company, will have to bear the entire increases in liabilty

on account of inflation

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calclulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants

both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increases in

the salary of the plan participant will increase the plan liability

The comapany categorizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value into one of three level depending on the ability to

observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

ii) Level 2 Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level 1 for the

financial asset or financial liabilities.

iii) Level 3 Inputs are unobservable input for the assets or liability reflecting the significant modifications to observable related market data

or Company's assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit plans and

management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows
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Quantitative disclosure fair value measurement hierarchy for assets/liabilites as at period end

Carrying 

Value

Fair Value Carrying 

Value

Fair Value

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Measured at amortised cost

Financial assets (current)

Trade Receivable Level 3 2,460.01     2,460.01        2,443.35      2,443.35           

Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 14.24          14.24             14.25           14.25                

Level 3 -              -                8.58             8.58                  

Financial assets (non-current)

Security deposits Level 3 15.38          15.38             15.38           15.38                

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Measured at amortised cost 

Borrowings-Non-current

Term loans (Secured) Level 3 323.47        323.47           267.56         267.56              

Vehicle loans from NBFC (Secured) Level 3 23.94          23.94             24.52           24.52                

Loans from directors (Unsecured) Level 3 159.66        159.66           107.42         107.42              

Loans from directors relative (Unsecured) Level 3 52.32          52.32             52.20           52.20                

Loans from bodies corporate (Unsecured) Level 3 291.32        291.32           277.20         277.20              

Total 850.71        850.71           728.90         728.90              

Borrowings-Current

Short term borrowings Level 3 970.96        970.96           982.95         982.95              

Current maturities of long term debt Level 3 95.15          95.15             162.54         162.54              

Trade payables Level 3 1,296.27     1,296.27        1,208.06      1,208.06           

Other current financial liabilites

Salaries & wages payable Level 3 78.90          78.90             89.45           89.45                

Interest accrued and due on borrowings Level 3 1.14            1.14               2.68             2.68                  

Cheque payable Level 3 0.35            0.35               0.94             0.94                  

Other payable Level 3 19.61          19.61             14.60           14.60                

Total 100.00        100.00           107.67         107.67              

Notes:

iii) There are no transfer between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. 

35

Financial risk factors

Level of the 

Fair Value

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Financial Risk Management objectives and policies

ii) Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables

and other financial liabilities have fair value that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

i) Fair valuation of current financial liabilities is considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities

of their instrument.

The company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risks, interest rate risks and price risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk. This note presents information about the company's exposure to each of the said risks, the company's

objectives, policies and processes for measuring risks and the company's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are

included throughout these financial statements.

Particulars

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy to the financial assets  and financial liabilities of the Company :-
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The company's exposure to the various types of risks associated to its activity and financial instruments is detailed below:

Credit risk

Provision for expected credit losses

Recognition of provision of expected credit losses provision is done on the basis of:

Trade receivables: 

Other assets:        

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Estimated 

gross 

carrying

Expected 

credit loss

expected 

credit losses

Carrying 

amount net of 

impairment 

provision

      2,460.01                    -                    -               2,460.01 

           14.24                    -                    -                    14.24 

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Estimated 

gross 

carrying

Expected 

credit loss

expected 

credit losses

Carrying 

amount net of 

impairment 

provision

      2,443.35                    -                    -               2,443.35 

           14.25                    -                    -                    14.25 

Liquidity risk

Trade receivables

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled

by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach of the company to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that these

will have sufficient liquidity to meet their respective liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to their reputation.

Cash and cash equivalents

The board of director has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management framework. The

company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company to set appropriate measures and

controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risks management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in

market conditions and in the company's activities.

Trade receivables

Particulars

12 months expected credit 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial

loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of

risks. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of a customer on a continuous basis to whom the credit has

been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial instrument that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally

consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instrument of the

Company result in material concentration of credit risk. 

Lifetime expected credit 

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 On demand
Within 1 

year
1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings Non-current

Term loans (Secured)                  -                   -              323.47                  -   323.47

Vehicle loan (Secured)                  -                   -                23.94                  -   23.94

Loans from director (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -             159.66 159.66              

Loans from directors relative (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -               52.32 52.32                

Loans from bodies corporate (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -             291.32 291.32              

Borrowings Current

Working capital loan from bank                  -            970.96                    -                    -   970.96              

Current maturities of long term borrowings                  -              95.15                    -                    -   95.15                

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued and due on borrowings                  -               1.14                    -                    -   1.14                  

Trade payables

Trade payables                  -         1,296.27                    -                    -   1,296.27           

For the year ended 31 March 2021 On demand
Within 1 

year
1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings Non-current

Term loans (Secured)                  -                   -              267.56                  -   267.56              

Vehicle loans (Secured)                  -                   -                24.52                  -   24.52                

Loans from director (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -             107.42 107.42              

Loans from directors relative (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -               52.20 52.20                

Loans from body corporate (Unsecured)                  -                   -                      -             277.20 277.20              

Borrowings Current

Working capital loan from bank                  -            982.95                    -                    -   982.95              

Current maturities of long term borrowings                  -            162.54                    -                    -   162.54              

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued and due on borrowings                  -               2.68                    -                    -   2.68                  

Trade payables

Trade payables                  -   1208.06                    -                    -   1,208.06           

36 Market Risk

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

USD USD

              7.20                    3.04 

Advance to suupliers                  -                      0.07 

              7.20                    3.11 

Advance from customers 0.28                                0.10 

              0.28                    0.10 

75.92 64.81              66.25 

Market risk is the risk that the Company's assets and liabilities will be exposed to due to a change in market prices such as foreign

exchange rates and interest rates that determine the valuation of these financial instruments. Financial instruments affected by market risk

include receivables, payables, and loans and borrowings.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of financial liabilities of company based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with

respect to the USD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities

denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly

probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable

forecast transactions.

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Net exposure to foreign currecy risk (assets)

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liability)

Financial liabilities

117



Sangal Papers Limited

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(C ) Sensitivity 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

            (0.01)                  (0.00)

              0.01                    0.00 

(b) Interest rate risk exposure:

The exposure of the group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

          323.47 267.56

            23.94 24.52

347.41 292.08

(b) Sensitivity

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2022 

 For the year 

ended 31 

March 2021 

              2.04                    1.69 

            (2.04)                  (1.69)

* Holding all other variable constant

37 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

As at 31 As at 31 

March 2022 March 2021

Contingent Liabilities -                   -                    

Commitment

450.00         -                    

38 Value of Imports (C.I.F.) Value in respect of 

Particulars As at 

31.03.2022

As at 

31.03.2021

(a) Raw materials 312.08         261.37              

(b) Stores & spare parts 8.88             9.26                  

(c) Plant & machinery -                   -                        

Expenditure in foreign currency -                   -                        

Remittance in foreign currency 320.96         270.63              

Earning in foreign currency 1,652.11      744.17              

INR/USD -Decrease by .5% (31 March 2019-.5%)

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Other components of

equity change as a result of an increase/decrease in the fair value of the cash flow hedges related to borrowings.

Total

Particular

Interest rates – increase by 50 basis points*

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and

the impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as

cash flow hedges.

Term loans from Banks

Vehicle loans from NBFC

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for

INR/USD -Increase by .5% (31 March 2020-.5%)

Interest rates – decrease by 50 basis points*

Impact on profit after tax

Particulars

Variable Rate Borrowings

Total

Impact on Profit after Tax

USD Sensitivity
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39 Consumption of Imported and Indigenous Raw Material, Stores & Spares Parts etc :

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

1. Raw Material

    Indigenous 8,870.22   88.44% 5,122.43    72.30%
    Imported 327.98      11.56% 306.20       27.70%
         Total Rs. 9,198.21   100.00% 5,428.64    100.00%

2. Stores & Spares 

    Indigenous 447.22      94.83% 332.20       92.59%
    Imported 10.30        5.17% 10.43         7.41%
         Total Rs. 457.53      100.00% 342.63       100.00%

-            -             

3. Chemical (Indigenous) 1,015.52   100.00% 942.18       100.00%

4. Packing Material (Indigenous) 206.12      100.00% 153.95       100.00%

40

a 66.67           66.47                

b -                   -                        

c -                   -                        

d -                   -                        

e -                   -                        

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the

interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006;

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,

until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for

the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED

Act) for the year ended March 31, 2022 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed

day during each accounting year;
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41 Related Party Disclosure

Related Parties names and relationship

Name of Party Principal 

Place of 

Operation

Principal 

Activitites

Relation

Shri Himanshu Sangal India Remuneration/
Investing Key Management Personnel

Shri Amit Sangal India Remuneration/
Investing Key Management Personnel

Shri Arpit Jain India Remuneration Key Management Personnel

Shri Tanmay Sangal India Remuneration/
Investing Relative of Key Management Personnel

Shri Vinayak Sangal India Remuneration/
Investing Relative of Key Management Personnel

Smt. Ishita Niyogi India Remuneration Relative of Key Management Personnel

Smt. Renu Sangal India Investing Relative of Key Management Personnel

Smt. Charu Sangal India Investing Relative of Key Management Personnel

Smt. Annika Saviola Gracias India Remuneration Relative of Key Management Personnel

Prerna Chits (P) Limited India Investing Company controlled by director/relative

Shree Ganesh Credits (P) Limited India Investing Company controlled by director/relative

Related parties transaction and balance 

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 

March 2021 

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Unsecured borrowings

Unsecured Loans taken            50.00                    -                    -                         -   

Unsecured Loans repayment             5.00                    -                 7.77                130.82 

Interest on Unsecured Loan             7.37                7.87             25.12                  32.30 

Outstanding Payable          150.14              98.51           353.15                338.32 

Salary to:-

Shri Himanshu Sangal, Managing Director            84.00              84.00                  -                         -   

Shri Amit Sangal, Whole Time Director & CFO            84.00              84.00                  -                         -   

Shri Tanmay Sangal, Director/ President Marketing                 -                      -               30.00                  30.00 

Shri Vinayak Sangal, Director/ President Operation                 -                      -               30.00                  30.00 

Smt. Ishita Niyogi, President Export                 -                      -                 9.60                    9.60 

Smt. Annika Saviola Gracias                 -                      -                 9.60                    9.60 

Shri Arpit Jain, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer             5.32                4.63                  -                         -   

Rent to:-

Smt. Renu Sangal                 -                      -                 4.44                    4.44 

Other payable

Shri Himanshu Sangal, Managing Director             4.60                4.40                  -                         -   

Shri Amit Sangal, Whole Time Director & CFO             4.60                5.20                  -                         -   

Shri Tanmay Sangal, Director/ President Marketing                 -                      -                 1.92                    1.68 

Shri Vinayak Sangal, Director/ President Operation                 -                      -                 1.92                    2.05 

Smt. Ishita Niyogi, President Export                 -                      -                 0.68                    0.80 

Smt. Annika Saviola Gracias                 -                      -                 0.68                    0.75 

Shri Arpit Jain, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer             0.45                0.43                  -                         -   

Smt. Renu Sangal                 -                      -                 0.33                    0.34 

Nature of transaction Key Management 

Personnel

Companies controlled by 

directors / relatives
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42  Segment  Reporting

Details of Revenue from Single Customer more then 10%

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

Within India           156.42                  13.17 

Outside India                  -                         -   

43 Capital management 

(a) Risk management 

Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the followings gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by 

Total 'equity' (as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests) 

The company's gearing ratio were as follows: 

  As at  31 

March 2022 

 As at 31 March 

2021 

1,902.58      1860.14

3,578.78      3415.43

53.16% 54.46%

44 Other Statutory Information

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Net debt to equity ratio

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a goning concern, so that they can continue

to provide return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Particular 

There is no revenue from single customer which exceeeds the 10% of the total revenue of the company for the FY 2021-22

Non current assets

In line with IND AS 108 - Operating Segments and on the basis of review of operations being done by the senior management, the

operations of the company fall under manufacturing of paper products, which is considered to be the only reportable segment by the

management.

Net debt 

Total equity

The company has disclosed capital work in progress as on 31.03.2022.

The company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the year.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company's capital management amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial 

covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowing that define capital structure requirement. Breaches in meeting the fianancial 

covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

The Company does not have any intangible assets under development during the current and previous year reporting period.

The Company does not hold any Benami Property and hence there were no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for

holding any benami property under the Benami Property Transaction Act, 1988 and the Rules made there under.

The company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns or

statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(Other than financial instruments; post employment benefits; deferred tax Assets; and

right arising under insurance contracts)

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital

work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the current reporting period and also reporting period and

also for previous year's reporting period.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the

Companies Act 2013, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand, or (b) without specifying any

terms or period of repayment.
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(ix)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(a) Transactions other than shareholding with struck off Companies NIL NIL

(b) On the basis of information available, details of shares held by struck off company (Face value of ₹ 10) are as under:-

No. of shares No. of shares

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Maharaja Finance & Investment Limited 160              160                   

Silla Investments Limited 120              120                   

Competent Marketing Private Limited 100              100                   

Dove Finance Private Limited 60                60                     

Parsani Investments & Leasing Pvt. Ltd. 40                40                     

(x) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(a)

(b)

(xiv)

(a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

45

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Type of Ratios Ratio Ratio Variance

Current Ratio
             1.62             1.51 7.28%

Debt Equity Ratio
             0.54             0.55 -1.82%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

             1.99             0.93 113.98%

Return on Equity Ratio
4.59% 1.91% 140.31%

Inventory Turnover Ratio            10.37             7.89 31.43%

Trade Receivable Turnover 

Ratio              6.32             4.49 40.76%

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
           10.97             8.44 29.98%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio              9.58             8.01 19.60%

Net Profit Ratio 1.06% 0.62% 70.97%

Return on Capital Employed 6.29% 4.17% 50.84%

Return on Investment

                 -                   -   -                

Sales/Working Capital
Net Profit (PAT)/Sales

EBIT/Capital Employed
Income on investment / 

Cost of investment

--

Due to increase in profit. 

Due to increase in profit. 

There is no investment in F.Y.

2021-22 and 2020-21.

Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Current Assets/Current 

Liabilities
Total Debt/Shareholders' 

Equity
Earnings available for debt 

service (EBIDTA) / (Interest 

+ Installments)

Financial Ratio Analysis

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the purpose for which it was obtained.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:-

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such transactons which was not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions

of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(ultimate beneficiaries) or

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Reason for variance

--

--

Due to increase in operating

profit and decrease in

repayment of installments.

Due to increase in profit after

tax. 

Due to increase in turnover.

Due to increase in turnover.

Due to increase in purchase .

Nature of transaction with struck- off 

company
Name of the Struck off Company

Shares held by struck off company

Shares held by struck off company

Shares held by struck off company

Shares held by struck off company

Shares held by struck off company

The Company does not have investment in any downstream companies for which it has to comply with the number of layers prescribed

under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

PAT/Equity Shareholders' 

Fund
Sales/Average Inventory

Net Credit Sales/Average 

Trade Receivables
Net Purchase / Average 

Trade Payables

Formula
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Sangal Papers Limited

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

46 Notes to accounts

(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For RAJ VIYOM & CO. For and on behalf of the Sangal Papers Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 002011C

Chartered Accountants

Managing  Director  Director

CA Raj Kumar Sharma (Himanshu Sangal) (Tanmay Sangal)

     Partner DIN- 00091324 DIN- 01297057

Membership No.: 077650

Place: Muzaffarnagar

Date: 30.05.2022 Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN:22077650AMHYZZ3087 (Amit Sangal) (Arpit Jain)

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           DIN: 00091486 PAN : ASQPJ9366A

Previous year figures have been re-arranged and re-grouped wherever necessary as to make them compareable. Figures have been rounded

off to nearest lakhs as per the provisions of schedule III of companies act 2013.

Balances of trade receivables, trade payable and advances as at 31st March, 2022 are subject to confirmation.
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